Table of Contents

Old Testament HEBREW: Spirit	
07307. רוח ruwach (roo'-akh)	3
07308 רוח ruwach (Aramaic) (roo'- akh)	22
0178 אוב 'owb (obe)	24
01172 בעלה baʻalah bah-al-aw'	25
03049 ידעני yidd@ʻoniy (yid-deh-o-nee')	25
05012 %⊐3 naba' naw-baw'	26
05396 เป็น nishma' (Aramaic) (nish-maw')	33
05397 נשמה n@shamah (nesh-aw-maw')	33
07119 קר qar kar	35
New Testament Greek: Spirit	36
4151 πνευμα pneuma (pnyoo'-mah)	38
3875 παρακλητος parakletos par-ak'-lay-tos	56
4152 πνευματικος pneumatikos (pnyoo-mat-ik-os')	57
4153 πνευματικως pneumatikos (pnyoo-mat-ik-oce')	
2473 ισοψυχος isopsuchos (ee-sop'-soo-khos)	59
5486 χαρισμα charisma (khar'-is-mah)	
5545 χρισμα chrisma (khris'-mah)	60
5326 φαντασμα phantasma (fan'-tas-mah)	
4396 προφητης prophetes (prof-ay'-tace)	
5590 ψυχη psuche (psoo-khay')	

Old Testament HEBREW: Spirit

```
H178 ... 1c) ghost, spirit of a dead one ...
... 3) one that has a familiar spirit ...
H1172 ... AV-mistress 2, hath (a familiar spirit) 2; 4 ...
H2148 ... 23) father of Jahaziel. He prophesied in the spirit ...
H3049 ... 1) a knower, one who has a familiar spirit 1a) a familiar spirit, soothsayer,
necromancer (meton) ...
H5012 ...
                  1a1a) under influence of divine spirit ...
           1b1a) under influence of divine spirit ...
H5396 ... 1) breath, spirit ...
H5397 ... AV-breath 17, blast 3, spirit 2, inspiration 1, souls 1; 24 ...
... 1) breath, spirit ...
 ... 1d) spirit (of man) ...
H7119 ... 1a) cool, calm, self-possessed (of spirit) ...
H7307 ... AV-Spirit or spirit 232, wind 92, breath 27, side 6, mind 5, blast 4, ...
... 1) wind, breath, mind, spirit ...
... 1c) spirit (as that which breathes quickly in animation or agitation)
                                                                                1c1) spirit,
animation, vivacity, vigour ...
H7308 ... AV-spirit 8, wind 2, mind 1; 11 ...
... 1) spirit, wind ...
... 1b) spirit ...
H8217 ... 1b) low (in station), humble (of condition or spirit) ...
```

07307. רוד ruwach (roo'-akh)

from 07306; wind; by resemblance breath, i.e. a sensible (or even violent) exhalation; figuratively, life, anger, unsubstantiality; by extension, a region of the sky; by resemblance spirit, but only of a rational being (including its expression and functions):-air, anger, blast, breath, X cool, courage, mind, X quarter, X side, spirit([-ual]), tempest, X vain, ([whirl-])wind(-y). Greek 4151 and 5590.

- Ge 1:2 And the earth was without form, and void; and darkness *was* upon the face of the deep. And the Spirit <07307> of God moved upon the face of the waters.
- Ge 3:8 And they heard the voice of the LORD God walking in the garden in the cool <07307> of the day: and Adam and his wife hid themselves from the presence of the LORD God amongst the trees of the garden.
- Ge 6:3 And the LORD said, My spirit <07307> shall not always strive with man, for that he also *is* flesh: yet his days shall be an hundred and twenty years.
- Ge 6:17 And, behold, I, even I, do bring a flood of waters upon the earth, to destroy all flesh, wherein *is* the breath <07307> of life, from under heaven; *and* every thing that *is* in the earth shall die.
- Ge 7:15 And they went in unto Noah into the ark, two and two of all flesh, wherein *is* the breath <07307> of life.
- Ge 7:22 All in whose nostrils was the breath <07307> of life, of all that was in the dry land, died.
- Ge 8:1 And God remembered Noah, and every living thing, and all the cattle that was with him in the ark: and God made a wind <07307> to pass over the earth, and the waters asswaged;
- Ge 26:35 Which were a grief of mind <07307> unto Isaac and to Rebekah.
- Ge 41:8 And it came to pass in the morning that his spirit <07307> was troubled; and he sent and called for all the magicians of Egypt, and all the wise men thereof: and Pharaoh told them his dream; but *there was* none that could interpret them unto Pharaoh.
- Ge 41:38 And Pharaoh said unto his servants, Can we find *such a one* as this *is*, a man in whom the Spirit <07307> of God *is*?
- Ge 45:27 And they told him all the words of Joseph, which he had said unto them: and when he saw the wagons which Joseph had sent to carry him, the spirit <07307> of Jacob their father revived:
- Ex 6:9 And Moses spake so unto the children of Israel: but they hearkened not unto Moses for anguish of spirit <07307>, and for cruel bondage.
- Ex 10:13 And Moses stretched forth his rod over the land of Egypt, and the LORD brought an east wind <07307> upon the land all that day, and all *that* night; *and* when it was morning, the east wind <07307> brought the locusts.
- Ex 10:19 And the LORD turned a mighty strong west wind <07307>, which took away the locusts, and cast them into the Red sea; there remained not one locust in all the coasts of Egypt.
- Ex 14:21 And Moses stretched out his hand over the sea; and the LORD caused the sea to go *back* by a strong east wind <07307> all that night, and made the sea dry *land*, and the waters were divided.

- Ex 15:8 And with the blast <a>07307> of thy nostrils the waters were gathered together, the floods stood upright as an heap, and the depths were congealed in the heart of the sea.
- Ex 15:10 Thou didst blow with thy wind <07307>, the sea covered them: they sank as lead in the mighty waters.
- Ex 28:3 And thou shalt speak unto all *that are* wise hearted, whom I have filled with the spirit <07307> of wisdom, that they may make Aaron's garments to consecrate him, that he may minister unto me in the priest's office.
- Ex 31:3 And I have filled him with the spirit <07307> of God, in wisdom, and in understanding, and in knowledge, and in all manner of workmanship,
- Ex 35:21 And they came, every one whose heart stirred him up, and every one whom his spirit <07307> made willing, and they brought the LORD'S offering to the work of the tabernacle of the congregation, and for all his service, and for the holy garments.
- Ex 35:31 And he hath filled him with the spirit <07307> of God, in wisdom, in understanding, and in knowledge, and in all manner of workmanship;
- Nu 5:14 And the spirit <07307> of jealousy come upon him, and he be jealous of his wife, and she be defiled: or if the spirit <07307> of jealousy come upon him, and he be jealous of his wife, and she be not defiled:
- Nu 5:30 Or when the spirit <07307> of jealousy cometh upon him, and he be jealous over his wife, and shall set the woman before the LORD, and the priest shall execute upon her all this law.
- Nu 11:17 And I will come down and talk with thee there: and I will take of the spirit <07307> which *is* upon thee, and will put *it* upon them; and they shall bear the burden of the people with thee, that thou bear *it* not thyself alone.
- Nu 11:25 And the LORD came down in a cloud, and spake unto him, and took of the spirit <07307> that was upon him, and gave it unto the seventy elders: and it came to pass, that, when the spirit <07307> rested upon them, they prophesied, and did not cease.
- Nu 11:26 But there remained two *of the* men in the camp, the name of the one *was* Eldad, and the name of the other Medad: and the spirit <07307> rested upon them; and they *were* of them that were written, but went not out unto the tabernacle: and they prophesied in the camp.
- Nu 11:29 And Moses said unto him, Enviest thou for my sake? would God that all the LORD'S people were prophets, *and* that the LORD would put his spirit <07307> upon them!
- Nu 11:31 And there went forth a wind <07307> from the LORD, and brought quails from the sea, and let *them* fall by the camp, as it were a day's journey on this side, and as it were a day's journey on the other side, round about the camp, and as it were two cubits *high* upon the face of the earth.
- Nu 14:24 But my servant Caleb, because he had another spirit <07307> with him, and hath followed me fully, him will I bring into the land whereinto he went; and his seed shall possess it.
- Nu 16:22 And they fell upon their faces, and said, O God, the God of the spirits <07307> of all flesh, shall one man sin, and wilt thou be wroth with all the congregation?

- Nu 24:2 And Balaam lifted up his eyes, and he saw Israel abiding *in his tents* according to their tribes; and the spirit <07307> of God came upon him.
- Nu 27:16 Let the LORD, the God of the spirits <a>07307> of all flesh, set a man over the congregation,
- Nu 27:18 And the LORD said unto Moses, Take thee Joshua the son of Nun, a man in whom *is* the spirit <07307>, and lay thine hand upon him;
- De 2:30 But Sihon king of Heshbon would not let us pass by him: for the LORD thy God hardened his spirit <07307>, and made his heart obstinate, that he might deliver him into thy hand, as *appeareth* this day.
- De 34:9 And Joshua the son of Nun was full of the spirit <07307> of wisdom; for Moses had laid his hands upon him: and the children of Israel hearkened unto him, and did as the LORD commanded Moses.
- Jos 2:11 And as soon as we had heard *these things*, our hearts did melt, neither did there remain any more courage <07307> in any man, because of you: for the LORD your God, he *is* God in heaven above, and in earth beneath.
- Jos 5:1 And it came to pass, when all the kings of the Amorites, which were on the side of Jordan westward, and all the kings of the Canaanites, which were by the sea, heard that the LORD had dried up the waters of Jordan from before the children of Israel, until we were passed over, that their heart melted, neither was there spirit <07307> in them any more, because of the children of Israel.
- Jud 3:10 And the Spirit <07307> of the LORD came upon him, and he judged Israel, and went out to war: and the LORD delivered Chushanrishathaim king of Mesopotamia into his hand; and his hand prevailed against Chushanrishathaim.
- Jud 6:34 But the Spirit <a>07307> of the LORD came upon Gideon, and he blew a trumpet; and Abiezer was gathered after him.
- Jud 8:3 God hath delivered into your hands the princes of Midian, Oreb and Zeeb: and what was I able to do in comparison of you? Then their anger <07307> was abated toward him, when he had said that.
- Jud 9:23 Then God sent an evil spirit <07307> between Abimelech and the men of Shechem; and the men of Shechem dealt treacherously with Abimelech:
- Jud 11:29 Then the Spirit <07307> of the LORD came upon Jephthah, and he passed over Gilead, and Manasseh, and passed over Mizpeh of Gilead, and from Mizpeh of Gilead he passed over *unto* the children of Ammon.
- Jud 13:25 And the Spirit <07307> of the LORD began to move him at times in the camp of Dan between Zorah and Eshtaol.
- Jud 14:6 And the Spirit <07307> of the LORD came mightily upon him, and he rent him as he would have rent a kid, and he had nothing in his hand: but he told not his father or his mother what he had done.
- Jud 14:19 And the Spirit <07307> of the LORD came upon him, and he went down to Ashkelon, and slew thirty men of them, and took their spoil, and gave change of garments unto them which expounded the riddle. And his anger was kindled, and he went up to his father's house.
- Jud 15:14 *And* when he came unto Lehi, the Philistines shouted against him: and the Spirit <07307> of the LORD came mightily upon him, and the cords that *were* upon his arms became as flax that was burnt with fire, and his bands loosed from off his hands.

- Jud 15:19 But God clave an hollow place that *was* in the jaw, and there came water thereout; and when he had drunk, his spirit <07307> came again, and he revived: wherefore he called the name thereof Enhakkore, which *is* in Lehi unto this day.
- 1Sa 1:15 And Hannah answered and said, No, my lord, I am a woman of a sorrowful spirit <07307>: I have drunk neither wine nor strong drink, but have poured out my soul before the LORD.
- 1Sa 10:6 And the Spirit <07307> of the LORD will come upon thee, and thou shalt prophesy with them, and shalt be turned into another man.
- 1Sa 10:10 And when they came thither to the hill, behold, a company of prophets met him; and the Spirit <07307> of God came upon him, and he prophesied among them.
- 1Sa 11:6 And the Spirit <07307> of God came upon Saul when he heard those tidings, and his anger was kindled greatly.
- 1Sa 16:13 Then Samuel took the horn of oil, and anointed him in the midst of his brethren: and the Spirit <07307> of the LORD came upon David from that day forward. So Samuel rose up, and went to Ramah.
- 1Sa 16:14 But the Spirit <07307> of the LORD departed from Saul, and an evil spirit <07307> from the LORD troubled him.
- 1Sa 16:15 And Saul's servants said unto him, Behold now, an evil spirit <07307> from God troubleth thee.
- 1Sa 16:16 Let our lord now command thy servants, *which are* before thee, to seek out a man, *who is* a cunning player on an harp: and it shall come to pass, when the evil spirit <07307> from God is upon thee, that he shall play with his hand, and thou shalt be well.
- 1Sa 16:23 And it came to pass, when the *evil* spirit <07307> from God was upon Saul, that David took an harp, and played with his hand: so Saul was refreshed, and was well, and the evil spirit <07307> departed from him.
- 1Sa 18:10 And it came to pass on the morrow, that the evil spirit <07307> from God came upon Saul, and he prophesied in the midst of the house: and David played with his hand, as at other times: and *there was* a javelin in Saul's hand.
- 1Sa 19:9 And the evil spirit <07307> from the LORD was upon Saul, as he sat in his house with his javelin in his hand: and David played with his hand.
- 1Sa 19:20 And Saul sent messengers to take David: and when they saw the company of the prophets prophesying, and Samuel standing *as* appointed over them, the Spirit <07307> of God was upon the messengers of Saul, and they also prophesied.
- 1Sa 19:23 And he went thither to Naioth in Ramah: and the Spirit <07307> of God was upon him also, and he went on, and prophesied, until he came to Naioth in Ramah.
- 1Sa 30:12 And they gave him a piece of a cake of figs, and two clusters of raisins: and when he had eaten, his spirit <07307> came again to him: for he had eaten no bread, nor drunk *any* water, three days and three nights.
- 2Sa 22:11 And he rode upon a cherub, and did fly: and he was seen upon the wings of the wind <07307>.
- 2Sa 22:16 And the channels of the sea appeared, the foundations of the world were discovered, at the rebuking of the LORD, at the blast of the breath <07307> of his nostrils.

- 2Sa 23:2 The Spirit <07307> of the LORD spake by me, and his word was in my tongue.
- 1Ki 10:5 And the meat of his table, and the sitting of his servants, and the attendance of his ministers, and their apparel, and his cupbearers, and his ascent by which he went up unto the house of the LORD; there was no more spirit <07307> in her.
- 1Ki 18:12 And it shall come to pass, as soon as I am gone from thee, that the Spirit <a href=
- 1Ki 18:45 And it came to pass in the mean while, that the heaven was black with clouds and wind <07307>, and there was a great rain. And Ahab rode, and went to Jezreel.
- 1Ki 19:11 And he said, Go forth, and stand upon the mount before the LORD. And, behold, the LORD passed by, and a great and strong wind <07307> rent the mountains, and brake in pieces the rocks before the LORD; but the LORD was not in the wind <07307>: and after the wind <07307> an earthquake; but the LORD was not in the earthquake:
- 1Ki 21:5 But Jezebel his wife came to him, and said unto him, Why is thy spirit <07307> so sad, that thou eatest no bread?
- 1Ki 22:21 And there came forth a spirit <07307>, and stood before the LORD, and said, I will persuade him.
- 1Ki 22:22 And the LORD said unto him, Wherewith? And he said, I will go forth, and I will be a lying spirit <07307> in the mouth of all his prophets. And he said, Thou shalt persuade *him*, and prevail also: go forth, and do so.
- 1Ki 22:23 Now therefore, behold, the LORD hath put a lying spirit <07307> in the mouth of all these thy prophets, and the LORD hath spoken evil concerning thee.
- 1Ki 22:24 But Zedekiah the son of Chenaanah went near, and smote Micaiah on the cheek, and said, Which way went the Spirit <07307> of the LORD from me to speak unto thee?
- 2Ki 2:9 And it came to pass, when they were gone over, that Elijah said unto Elisha, Ask what I shall do for thee, before I be taken away from thee. And Elisha said, I pray thee, let a double portion of thy spirit <07307> be upon me.
- 2Ki 2:15 And when the sons of the prophets which *were* to view at Jericho saw him, they said, The spirit <07307> of Elijah doth rest on Elisha. And they came to meet him, and bowed themselves to the ground before him.
- 2Ki 2:16 And they said unto him, Behold now, there be with thy servants fifty strong men; let them go, we pray thee, and seek thy master: lest peradventure the Spirit <07307> of the LORD hath taken him up, and cast him upon some mountain, or into some valley. And he said, Ye shall not send.
- 2Ki 3:17 For thus saith the LORD, Ye shall not see wind <07307>, neither shall ye see rain; yet that valley shall be filled with water, that ye may drink, both ye, and your cattle, and your beasts.
- 2Ki 19:7 Behold, I will send a blast c07307> upon him, and he shall hear a rumour, and shall return to his own land; and I will cause him to fall by the sword in his own land.

- 1Ch 5:26 And the God of Israel stirred up the spirit <07307> of Pul king of Assyria, and the spirit <07307> of Tilgathpilneser king of Assyria, and he carried them away, even the Reubenites, and the Gadites, and the half tribe of Manasseh, and brought them unto Halah, and Habor, and Hara, and to the river Gozan, unto this day.
- 1Ch 9:24 In four quarters <07307> were the porters, toward the east, west, north, and south.
- 1Ch 12:18 Then the spirit <07307> came upon Amasai, who was chief of the captains, and he said, Thine are we, David, and on thy side, thou son of Jesse: peace, peace be unto thee, and peace be to thine helpers; for thy God helpeth thee. Then David received them, and made them captains of the band.
- 1Ch 28:12 And the pattern of all that he had by the spirit <07307>, of the courts of the house of the LORD, and of all the chambers round about, of the treasuries of the house of God, and of the treasuries of the dedicated things:
- 2Ch 9:4 And the meat of his table, and the sitting of his servants, and the attendance of his ministers, and their apparel; his cupbearers also, and their apparel; and his ascent by which he went up into the house of the LORD; there was no more spirit <a href="corontology: corontology: coro
- 2Ch 15:1 And the Spirit <07307> of God came upon Azariah the son of Oded:
- 2Ch 18:20 Then there came out a spirit <07307>, and stood before the LORD, and said, I will entice him. And the LORD said unto him, Wherewith?
- 2Ch 18:21 And he said, I will go out, and be a lying spirit <07307> in the mouth of all his prophets. And *the LORD* said, Thou shalt entice *him*, and thou shalt also prevail: go out, and do *even* so.
- 2Ch 18:22 Now therefore, behold, the LORD hath put a lying spirit <07307> in the mouth of these thy prophets, and the LORD hath spoken evil against thee.
- 2Ch 18:23 Then Zedekiah the son of Chenaanah came near, and smote Micaiah upon the cheek, and said, Which way went the Spirit <07307> of the LORD from me to speak unto thee?
- 2Ch 20:14 Then upon Jahaziel the son of Zechariah, the son of Benaiah, the son of Jeiel, the son of Mattaniah, a Levite of the sons of Asaph, came the Spirit <07307> of the LORD in the midst of the congregation;
- 2Ch 21:16 Moreover the LORD stirred up against Jehoram the spirit <07307> of the Philistines, and of the Arabians, that were near the Ethiopians:
- 2Ch 24:20 And the Spirit <07307> of God came upon Zechariah the son of Jehoiada the priest, which stood above the people, and said unto them, Thus saith God, Why transgress ye the commandments of the LORD, that ye cannot prosper? because ye have forsaken the LORD, he hath also forsaken you.
- 2Ch 36:22 Now in the first year of Cyrus king of Persia, that the word of the LORD *spoken* by the mouth of Jeremiah might be accomplished, the LORD stirred up the spirit <07307> of Cyrus king of Persia, that he made a proclamation throughout all his kingdom, and *put it* also in writing, saying,
- Ezr 1:1 Now in the first year of Cyrus king of Persia, that the word of the LORD by the mouth of Jeremiah might be fulfilled, the LORD stirred up the spirit <07307> of Cyrus king of Persia, that he made a proclamation throughout all his kingdom, and put it also in writing, saying,

- Ezr 1:5 Then rose up the chief of the fathers of Judah and Benjamin, and the priests, and the Levites, with all *them* whose spirit <07307> God had raised, to go up to build the house of the LORD which *is* in Jerusalem.
- Ne 9:20 Thou gavest also thy good spirit <a>07307> to instruct them, and withheldest not thy manna from their mouth, and gavest them water for their thirst.
- Ne 9:30 Yet many years didst thou forbear them, and testifiedst against them by thy spirit <07307> in thy prophets: yet would they not give ear: therefore gavest thou them into the hand of the people of the lands.
- Job 1:19 And, behold, there came a great wind <07307> from the wilderness, and smote the four corners of the house, and it fell upon the young men, and they are dead; and I only am escaped alone to tell thee.
- Job 4:9 By the blast of God they perish, and by the breath <07307> of his nostrils are they consumed.
- Job 4:15 Then a spirit <07307> passed before my face; the hair of my flesh stood up:
- Job 6:4 For the arrows of the Almighty *are* within me, the poison whereof drinketh up my spirit <07307>: the terrors of God do set themselves in array against me.
- Job 6:26 Do ye imagine to reprove words, and the speeches of one that is desperate, which are as wind <07307>?
- Job 7:7 O remember that my life *is* wind <07307>: mine eye shall no more see good.
- Job 7:11 Therefore I will not refrain my mouth; I will speak in the anguish of my spirit <07307>; I will complain in the bitterness of my soul.
- Job 8:2 How long wilt thou speak these *things*? and *how long shall* the words of thy mouth *be like* a strong wind <07307>?
- Job 9:18 He will not suffer me to take my breath <07307>, but filleth me with bitterness.
- Job 10:12 Thou hast granted me life and favour, and thy visitation hath preserved my spirit <07307>.
- Job 12:10 In whose hand *is* the soul of every living thing, and the breath <07307> of all mankind.
- Job 15:2 Should a wise man utter vain <07307> knowledge, and fill his belly with the east wind?
- Job 15:13 That thou turnest thy spirit <07307> against God, and lettest *such* words go out of thy mouth?
- Job 15:30 He shall not depart out of darkness; the flame shall dry up his branches, and by the breath <07307> of his mouth shall he go away.
- Job 16:3 Shall vain <07307> words have an end? or what emboldeneth thee that thou answerest?
- Job 17:1 My breath <07307> is corrupt, my days are extinct, the graves *are ready* for me.
- Job 19:17 My breath <07307> is strange to my wife, though I intreated for the children's *sake* of mine own body.
- Job 20:3 I have heard the check of my reproach, and the spirit <07307> of my understanding causeth me to answer.
- Job 21:4 As for me, *is* my complaint to man? and if *it were so*, why should not my spirit <a>07307> be troubled?

- Job 21:18 They are as stubble before the wind <07307>, and as chaff that the storm carrieth away.
- Job 26:13 By his spirit <07307> he hath garnished the heavens; his hand hath formed the crooked serpent.
- Job 27:3 All the while my breath *is* in me, and the spirit <corp> color: color: blue; of God *is* in my nostrils;
- Job 28:25 To make the weight for the winds <07307>; and he weigheth the waters by measure.
- Job 30:15 Terrors are turned upon me: they pursue my soul as the wind <07307>: and my welfare passeth away as a cloud.
- Job 30:22 Thou liftest me up to the wind <07307>; thou causest me to ride *upon it*, and dissolvest my substance.
- Job 32:8 But *there is* a spirit <07307> in man: and the inspiration of the Almighty giveth them understanding.
- Job 32:18 For I am full of matter, the spirit <07307> within me constraineth me.
- Job 33:4 The Spirit <07307> of God hath made me, and the breath of the Almighty hath given me life.
- Job 34:14 If he set his heart upon man, *if* he gather unto himself his spirit <07307> and his breath:
- Job 37:21 And now *men* see not the bright light which *is* in the clouds: but the wind <07307> passeth, and cleanseth them.
- Job 41:16 One is so near to another, that no air <07307> can come between them.
- Ps 1:4 The ungodly *are* not so: but *are* like the chaff which the wind <07307> driveth away.
- Ps 11:6 Upon the wicked he shall rain snares, fire and brimstone, and an horrible tempest <07307>: this shall be the portion of their cup.
- Ps 18:10 And he rode upon a cherub, and did fly: yea, he did fly upon the wings of the wind <07307>.
- Ps 18:15 Then the channels of waters were seen, and the foundations of the world were discovered at thy rebuke, O LORD, at the blast of the breath <07307> of thy nostrils.
- Ps 18:42 Then did I beat them small as the dust before the wind <07307>: I did cast them out as the dirt in the streets.
- Ps 31:5 Into thine hand I commit my spirit <07307>: thou hast redeemed me, O LORD God of truth.
- Ps 32:2 Blessed *is* the man unto whom the LORD imputeth not iniquity, and in whose spirit <07307> *there is* no guile.
- Ps 33:6 By the word of the LORD were the heavens made; and all the host of them by the breath <07307> of his mouth.
- Ps 34:18 The LORD *is* nigh unto them that are of a broken heart; and saveth such as be of a contrite spirit <07307>.
- Ps 35:5 Let them be as chaff before the wind <07307>: and let the angel of the LORD chase *them*.
- Ps 48:7 Thou breakest the ships of Tarshish with an east wind <07307>.
- Ps 51:10 Create in me a clean heart, O God; and renew a right spirit <07307> within me.

- Ps 51:11 Cast me not away from thy presence; and take not thy holy spirit <07307> from me.
- Ps 51:12 Restore unto me the joy of thy salvation; and uphold me *with thy* free spirit <07307>.
- Ps 51:17 The sacrifices of God *are* a broken spirit <07307>: a broken and a contrite heart, O God, thou wilt not despise.
- Ps 55:8 I would hasten my escape from the windy <07307> storm and tempest.
- Ps 76:12 He shall cut off the spirit <07307> of princes: *he is* terrible to the kings of the earth.
- Ps 77:3 I remembered God, and was troubled: I complained, and my spirit <07307> was overwhelmed. Selah.
- Ps 77:6 I call to remembrance my song in the night: I commune with mine own heart: and my spirit <07307> made diligent search.
- Ps 78:8 And might not be as their fathers, a stubborn and rebellious generation; a generation *that* set not their heart aright, and whose spirit <07307> was not stedfast with God.
- Ps 78:39 For he remembered that they *were but* flesh; a wind <07307> that passeth away, and cometh not again.
- Ps 83:13 O my God, make them like a wheel; as the stubble before the wind <07307>.
- Ps 103:16 For the wind <07307> passeth over it, and it is gone; and the place thereof shall know it no more.
- Ps 104:3 Who layeth the beams of his chambers in the waters: who maketh the clouds his chariot: who walketh upon the wings of the wind <07307>:
- Ps 104:4 Who maketh his angels spirits <07307>; his ministers a flaming fire:
- Ps 104:29 Thou hidest thy face, they are troubled: thou takest away their breath <07307>, they die, and return to their dust.
- Ps 104:30 Thou sendest forth thy spirit <07307>, they are created: and thou renewest the face of the earth.
- Ps 106:33 Because they provoked his spirit <07307>, so that he spake unadvisedly with his lips.
- Ps 107:25 For he commandeth, and raiseth the stormy wind <07307>, which lifteth up the waves thereof.
- Ps 135:7 He causeth the vapours to ascend from the ends of the earth; he maketh lightnings for the rain; he bringeth the wind <07307> out of his treasuries.
- Ps 135:17 They have ears, but they hear not; neither is there *any* breath <07307> in their mouths.
- Ps 139:7 Whither shall I go from thy spirit <07307>? or whither shall I flee from thy presence?
- Ps 142:3 When my spirit <07307> was overwhelmed within me, then thou knewest my path. In the way wherein I walked have they privily laid a snare for me.
- Ps 143:4 Therefore is my spirit <07307> overwhelmed within me; my heart within me is desolate.
- Ps 143:7 Hear me speedily, O LORD: my spirit <07307> faileth: hide not thy face from me, lest I be like unto them that go down into the pit.
- Ps 143:10 Teach me to do thy will; for thou *art* my God: thy spirit <07307> is good; lead me into the land of uprightness.

- Ps 146:4 His breath <07307> goeth forth, he returneth to his earth; in that very day his thoughts perish.
- Ps 147:18 He sendeth out his word, and melteth them: he causeth his wind <07307> to blow, and the waters flow.
- Ps 148:8 Fire, and hail; snow, and vapour; stormy wind <07307> fulfilling his word:
- Pr 1:23 Turn you at my reproof: behold, I will pour out my spirit <07307> unto you, I will make known my words unto you.
- Pr 11:13 A talebearer revealeth secrets: but he that is of a faithful spirit <07307> concealeth the matter.
- Pr 11:29 He that troubleth his own house shall inherit the wind <07307>: and the fool shall be servant to the wise of heart.
- Pr 14:29 *He that is* slow to wrath *is* of great understanding: but *he that is* hasty of spirit <07307> exalteth folly.
- Pr 15:4 A wholesome tongue *is* a tree of life: but perverseness therein *is* a breach in the spirit <07307>.
- Pr 15:13 A merry heart maketh a cheerful countenance: but by sorrow of the heart the spirit <07307> is broken.
- Pr 16:2 All the ways of a man *are* clean in his own eyes; but the LORD weigheth the spirits <07307>.
- Pr 16:18 Pride *goeth* before destruction, and an haughty spirit <07307> before a fall.
- Pr 16:19 Better *it is to be* of an humble spirit <07307> with the lowly, than to divide the spoil with the proud.
- Pr 16:32 *He that is* slow to anger *is* better than the mighty; and he that ruleth his spirit <07307> than he that taketh a city.
- Pr 17:22 A merry heart doeth good *like* a medicine: but a broken spirit <07307> drieth the bones.
- Pr 17:27 He that hath knowledge spareth his words: *and* a man of understanding is of an excellent spirit <07307>.
- Pr 18:14 The spirit <07307> of a man will sustain his infirmity; but a wounded spirit <07307> who can bear?
- Pr 25:14 Whoso boasteth himself of a false gift *is like* clouds and wind <07307> without rain.
- Pr 25:23 The north wind <07307> driveth away rain: so *doth* an angry countenance a backbiting tongue.
- Pr 25:28 He that *hath* no rule over his own spirit <07307> is like a city that is broken down, and without walls.
- Pr 27:16 Whosoever hideth her hideth the wind <07307>, and the ointment of his right hand, which bewrayeth itself.
- Pr 29:11 A fool uttereth all his mind <07307>: but a wise *man* keepeth it in till afterwards.
- Pr 29:23 A man's pride shall bring him low: but honour shall uphold the humble in spirit <07307>.
- Pr 30:4 Who hath ascended up into heaven, or descended? who hath gathered the wind <07307> in his fists? who hath bound the waters in a garment? who hath established all the ends of the earth? what *is* his name, and what *is* his son's name, if thou canst tell?

- Ec 1:6 The wind <07307> goeth toward the south, and turneth about unto the north; it whirleth about continually, and the wind <07307> returneth again according to his circuits.
- Ec 1:14 I have seen all the works that are done under the sun; and, behold, all *is* vanity and vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Ec 1:17 And I gave my heart to know wisdom, and to know madness and folly: I perceived that this also is vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Ec 2:11 Then I looked on all the works that my hands had wrought, and on the labour that I had laboured to do: and, behold, all was vanity and vexation of spirit <07307>, and there was no profit under the sun.
- Ec 2:17 Therefore I hated life; because the work that is wrought under the sun *is* grievous unto me: for all *is* vanity and vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Ec 2:26 For *God* giveth to a man that *is* good in his sight wisdom, and knowledge, and joy: but to the sinner he giveth travail, to gather and to heap up, that he may give to *him that is* good before God. This also *is* vanity and vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Ec 3:19 For that which befalleth the sons of men befalleth beasts; even one thing befalleth them: as the one dieth, so dieth the other; yea, they have all one breath <07307>; so that a man hath no preeminence above a beast: for all *is* vanity.
- Ec 3:21 Who knoweth the spirit <07307> of man that goeth upward, and the spirit <07307> of the beast that goeth downward to the earth?
- Ec 4:4 Again, I considered all travail, and every right work, that for this a man is envied of his neighbour. This *is* also vanity and vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Ec 4:6 Better *is* an handful *with* quietness, than both the hands full *with* travail and vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Ec 4:16 *There is* no end of all the people, *even* of all that have been before them: they also that come after shall not rejoice in him. Surely this also *is* vanity and vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Ec 5:16 And this also *is* a sore evil, *that* in all points as he came, so shall he go: and what profit hath he that hath laboured for the wind <07307>?
- Ec 6:9 Better *is* the sight of the eyes than the wandering of the desire: this *is* also vanity and vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Ec 7:8 Better *is* the end of a thing than the beginning thereof: *and* the patient in spirit <07307> is better than the proud in spirit <07307>.
- Ec 7:9 Be not hasty in thy spirit <07307> to be angry: for anger resteth in the bosom of fools.
- Ec 8:8 *There is* no man that hath power over the spirit c07307>; neither hath he power in the day of death: and there is no discharge in that war; neither shall wickedness deliver those that are given to it.
- Ec 10:4 If the spirit <07307> of the ruler rise up against thee, leave not thy place; for yielding pacifieth great offences.
- Ec 11:4 He that observeth the wind <07307> shall not sow; and he that regardeth the clouds shall not reap.
- Ec 11:5 As thou knowest not what *is* the way of the spirit <07307>, *nor* how the bones *do grow* in the womb of her that is with child: even so thou knowest not the works of God who maketh all.

- Ec 12:7 Then shall the dust return to the earth as it was: and the spirit <07307> shall return unto God who gave it.
- Isa 4:4 When the Lord shall have washed away the filth of the daughters of Zion, and shall have purged the blood of Jerusalem from the midst thereof by the spirit <07307> of judgment, and by the spirit <07307> of burning.
- Isa 7:2 And it was told the house of David, saying, Syria is confederate with Ephraim. And his heart was moved, and the heart of his people, as the trees of the wood are moved with the wind <07307>.
- Isa 11:2 And the spirit <07307> of the LORD shall rest upon him, the spirit <07307> of wisdom and understanding, the spirit <07307> of counsel and might, the spirit <07307> of knowledge and of the fear of the LORD;
- Isa 11:4 But with righteousness shall he judge the poor, and reprove with equity for the meek of the earth: and he shall smite the earth with the rod of his mouth, and with the breath <07307> of his lips shall he slay the wicked.
- Isa 11:15 And the LORD shall utterly destroy the tongue of the Egyptian sea; and with his mighty wind <07307> shall he shake his hand over the river, and shall smite it in the seven streams, and make *men* go over dryshod.
- Isa 17:13 The nations shall rush like the rushing of many waters: but *God* shall rebuke them, and they shall flee far off, and shall be chased as the chaff of the mountains before the wind <07307>, and like a rolling thing before the whirlwind.
- Isa 19:3 And the spirit <07307> of Egypt shall fail in the midst thereof; and I will destroy the counsel thereof: and they shall seek to the idols, and to the charmers, and to them that have familiar spirits, and to the wizards.
- Isa 19:14 The LORD hath mingled a perverse spirit <07307> in the midst thereof: and they have caused Egypt to err in every work thereof, as a drunken *man* staggereth in his vomit.
- Isa 25:4 For thou hast been a strength to the poor, a strength to the needy in his distress, a refuge from the storm, a shadow from the heat, when the blast < 07307> of the terrible ones *is* as a storm *against* the wall.
- Isa 26:9 With my soul have I desired thee in the night; yea, with my spirit <07307> within me will I seek thee early: for when thy judgments *are* in the earth, the inhabitants of the world will learn righteousness.
- Isa 26:18 We have been with child, we have been in pain, we have as it were brought forth wind <07307>; we have not wrought any deliverance in the earth; neither have the inhabitants of the world fallen.
- Isa 27:8 In measure, when it shooteth forth, thou wilt debate with it: he stayeth his rough wind <07307> in the day of the east wind.
- Isa 28:6 And for a spirit <07307> of judgment to him that sitteth in judgment, and for strength to them that turn the battle to the gate.
- Isa 29:10 For the LORD hath poured out upon you the spirit <07307> of deep sleep, and hath closed your eyes: the prophets and your rulers, the seers hath he covered.
- Isa 29:24 They also that erred in spirit <07307> shall come to understanding, and they that murmured shall learn doctrine.
- Isa 30:1 Woe to the rebellious children, saith the LORD, that take counsel, but not of me; and that cover with a covering, but not of my spirit <07307>, that they may add sin to sin:

- Isa 30:28 And his breath <07307>, as an overflowing stream, shall reach to the midst of the neck, to sift the nations with the sieve of vanity: and *there shall be* a bridle in the jaws of the people, causing *them* to err.
- Isa 31:3 Now the Egyptians *are* men, and not God; and their horses flesh, and not spirit <07307>. When the LORD shall stretch out his hand, both he that helpeth shall fall, and he that is holpen shall fall down, and they all shall fail together.
- Isa 32:2 And a man shall be as an hiding place from the wind <07307>, and a covert from the tempest; as rivers of water in a dry place, as the shadow of a great rock in a weary land.
- Isa 32:15 Until the spirit <07307> be poured upon us from on high, and the wilderness be a fruitful field, and the fruitful field be counted for a forest.
- Isa 33:11 Ye shall conceive chaff, ye shall bring forth stubble: your breath <07307>, as fire, shall devour you.
- Isa 34:16 Seek ye out of the book of the LORD, and read: no one of these shall fail, none shall want her mate: for my mouth it hath commanded, and his spirit <07307> it hath gathered them.
- Isa 37:7 Behold, I will send a blast <07307> upon him, and he shall hear a rumour, and return to his own land; and I will cause him to fall by the sword in his own land.
- Isa 38:16 O Lord, by these *things men* live, and in all these *things is* the life of my spirit <a>07307>: so wilt thou recover me, and make me to live.
- Isa 40:7 The grass withereth, the flower fadeth: because the spirit <07307> of the LORD bloweth upon it: surely the people *is* grass.
- Isa 40:13 Who hath directed the Spirit <07307> of the LORD, or *being* his counsellor hath taught him?
- Isa 41:16 Thou shalt fan them, and the wind <07307> shall carry them away, and the whirlwind shall scatter them: and thou shalt rejoice in the LORD, and shalt glory in the Holy One of Israel.
- Isa 41:29 Behold, they *are* all vanity; their works *are* nothing: their molten images *are* wind <07307> and confusion.
- Isa 42:1 Behold my servant, whom I uphold; mine elect, *in whom* my soul delighteth; I have put my spirit <07307> upon him: he shall bring forth judgment to the Gentiles.
- Isa 42:5 Thus saith God the LORD, he that created the heavens, and stretched them out; he that spread forth the earth, and that which cometh out of it; he that giveth breath unto the people upon it, and spirit <07307> to them that walk therein:
- Isa 44:3 For I will pour water upon him that is thirsty, and floods upon the dry ground: I will pour my spirit <07307> upon thy seed, and my blessing upon thine offspring:
- Isa 48:16 Come ye near unto me, hear ye this; I have not spoken in secret from the beginning; from the time that it was, there *am* I: and now the Lord GOD, and his Spirit <07307>, hath sent me.
- Isa 54:6 For the LORD hath called thee as a woman forsaken and grieved in spirit <a>07307>, and a wife of youth, when thou wast refused, saith thy God.
- Isa 57:13 When thou criest, let thy companies deliver thee; but the wind <07307> shall carry them all away; vanity shall take *them*: but he that putteth his trust in me shall possess the land, and shall inherit my holy mountain;
- Isa 57:15 For thus saith the high and lofty One that inhabiteth eternity, whose name *is* Holy; I dwell in the high and holy *place*, with him also *that is* of a contrite and

- humble spirit $\leq 07307 >$, to revive the spirit $\leq 07307 >$ of the humble, and to revive the heart of the contrite ones.
- Isa 57:16 For I will not contend for ever, neither will I be always wroth: for the spirit <07307> should fail before me, and the souls which I have made.
- Isa 59:19 So shall they fear the name of the LORD from the west, and his glory from the rising of the sun. When the enemy shall come in like a flood, the Spirit <07307> of the LORD shall lift up a standard against him.
- Isa 59:21 As for me, this *is* my covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with them, saith the LORD; My spirit covenant with the mouth of thy seed, nor out of the mouth of thy seed's seed, saith the LORD, from henceforth and for ever.
- Isa 61:1 The Spirit <07307> of the Lord GOD *is* upon me; because the LORD hath anointed me to preach good tidings unto the meek; he hath sent me to bind up the brokenhearted, to proclaim liberty to the captives, and the opening of the prison to *them that are* bound;
- Isa 61:3 To appoint unto them that mourn in Zion, to give unto them beauty for ashes, the oil of joy for mourning, the garment of praise for the spirit <07307> of heaviness; that they might be called trees of righteousness, the planting of the LORD, that he might be glorified.
- Isa 63:10 But they rebelled, and vexed his holy Spirit <07307>: therefore he was turned to be their enemy, *and* he fought against them.
- Isa 63:11 Then he remembered the days of old, Moses, *and* his people, *saying*, Where *is* he that brought them up out of the sea with the shepherd of his flock? where *is* he that put his holy Spirit <07307> within him?
- Isa 63:14 As a beast goeth down into the valley, the Spirit <07307> of the LORD caused him to rest: so didst thou lead thy people, to make thyself a glorious name.
- Isa 64:6 But we are all as an unclean *thing*, and all our righteousnesses *are* as filthy rags; and we all do fade as a leaf; and our iniquities, like the wind <07307>, have taken us away.
- Isa 65:14 Behold, my servants shall sing for joy of heart, but ye shall cry for sorrow of heart, and shall howl for vexation of spirit <07307>.
- Isa 66:2 For all those *things* hath mine hand made, and all those *things* have been, saith the LORD: but to this *man* will I look, *even* to *him that is* poor and of a contrite spirit <07307>, and trembleth at my word.
- Jer 2:24 A wild ass used to the wilderness, *that* snuffeth up the wind <07307> at her pleasure; in her occasion who can turn her away? all they that seek her will not weary themselves; in her month they shall find her.
- Jer 4:11 At that time shall it be said to this people and to Jerusalem, A dry wind <07307> of the high places in the wilderness toward the daughter of my people, not to fan, nor to cleanse,
- Jer 5:13 And the prophets shall become wind <07307>, and the word *is* not in them: thus shall it be done unto them.

- Jer 10:13 When he uttereth his voice, *there is* a multitude of waters in the heavens, and he causeth the vapours to ascend from the ends of the earth; he maketh lightnings with rain, and bringeth forth the wind <07307> out of his treasures.
- Jer 10:14 Every man is brutish in *his* knowledge: every founder is confounded by the graven image: for his molten image *is* falsehood, and *there is* no breath <07307> in them.
- Jer 13:24 Therefore will I scatter them as the stubble that passeth away by the wind <07307> of the wilderness.
- Jer 14:6 And the wild asses did stand in the high places, they snuffed up the wind <07307> like dragons; their eyes did fail, because *there was* no grass.
- Jer 18:17 I will scatter them as with an east wind <07307> before the enemy; I will shew them the back, and not the face, in the day of their calamity.
- Jer 22:22 The wind <07307> shall eat up all thy pastors, and thy lovers shall go into captivity: surely then shalt thou be ashamed and confounded for all thy wickedness.
- Jer 49:32 And their camels shall be a booty, and the multitude of their cattle a spoil: and I will scatter into all winds <07307> them that are in the utmost corners; and I will bring their calamity from all sides thereof, saith the LORD.
- Jer 49:36 And upon Elam will I bring the four winds <07307> from the four quarters of heaven, and will scatter them toward all those winds <07307>; and there shall be no nation whither the outcasts of Elam shall not come.
- Jer 51:1 Thus saith the LORD; Behold, I will raise up against Babylon, and against them that dwell in the midst of them that rise up against me, a destroying wind <07307>;
- Jer 51:11 Make bright the arrows; gather the shields: the LORD hath raised up the spirit <07307> of the kings of the Medes: for his device *is* against Babylon, to destroy it; because it *is* the vengeance of the LORD, the vengeance of his temple.
- Jer 51:16 When he uttereth *his* voice, *there is* a multitude of waters in the heavens; and he causeth the vapours to ascend from the ends of the earth: he maketh lightnings with rain, and bringeth forth the wind <07307> out of his treasures.
- Jer 51:17 Every man is brutish by *his* knowledge; every founder is confounded by the graven image: for his molten image *is* falsehood, and *there is* no breath <07307> in them.
- Jer 52:23 And there were ninety and six pomegranates on a side <07307>; and all the pomegranates upon the network were an hundred round about.
- La 4:20 The breath <07307> of our nostrils, the anointed of the LORD, was taken in their pits, of whom we said, Under his shadow we shall live among the heathen.
- Eze 1:4 And I looked, and, behold, a whirlwind <07307> came out of the north, a great cloud, and a fire infolding itself, and a brightness was about it, and out of the midst thereof as the colour of amber, out of the midst of the fire.
- Eze 1:12 And they went every one straight forward: whither the spirit <07307> was to go, they went; and they turned not when they went.
- Eze 1:20 Whithersoever the spirit <07307> was to go, they went, thither was their spirit <07307> to go; and the wheels were lifted up over against them: for the spirit <07307> of the living creature was in the wheels.

- Eze 1:21 When those went, *these* went; and when those stood, *these* stood; and when those were lifted up from the earth, the wheels were lifted up over against them: for the spirit <07307> of the living creature *was* in the wheels.
- Eze 2:2 And the spirit <07307> entered into me when he spake unto me, and set me upon my feet, that I heard him that spake unto me.
- Eze 3:12 Then the spirit <07307> took me up, and I heard behind me a voice of a great rushing, saying, Blessed be the glory of the LORD from his place.
- Eze 3:14 So the spirit <07307> lifted me up, and took me away, and I went in bitterness, in the heat of my spirit <07307>; but the hand of the LORD was strong upon me.
- Eze 3:24 Then the spirit <07307> entered into me, and set me upon my feet, and spake with me, and said unto me, Go, shut thyself within thine house.
- Eze 5:2 Thou shalt burn with fire a third part in the midst of the city, when the days of the siege are fulfilled: and thou shalt take a third part, and smite about it with a knife: and a third part thou shalt scatter in the wind <07307>; and I will draw out a sword after them.
- Eze 5:10 Therefore the fathers shall eat the sons in the midst of thee, and the sons shall eat their fathers; and I will execute judgments in thee, and the whole remnant of thee will I scatter into all the winds <07307>.
- Eze 5:12 A third part of thee shall die with the pestilence, and with famine shall they be consumed in the midst of thee: and a third part shall fall by the sword round about thee; and I will scatter a third part into all the winds <07307>, and I will draw out a sword after them.
- Eze 8:3 And he put forth the form of an hand, and took me by a lock of mine head; and the spirit <07307> lifted me up between the earth and the heaven, and brought me in the visions of God to Jerusalem, to the door of the inner gate that looketh toward the north; where was the seat of the image of jealousy, which provoketh to jealousy.
- Eze 10:17 When they stood, *these* stood; and when they were lifted up, *these* lifted up themselves *also*: for the spirit <07307> of the living creature *was* in them.
- Eze 11:1 Moreover the spirit <07307> lifted me up, and brought me unto the east gate of the LORD'S house, which looketh eastward: and behold at the door of the gate five and twenty men; among whom I saw Jaazaniah the son of Azur, and Pelatiah the son of Benaiah, princes of the people.
- Eze 11:5 And the Spirit <07307> of the LORD fell upon me, and said unto me, Speak; Thus saith the LORD; Thus have ye said, O house of Israel: for I know the things that come into your mind <07307>, every one of them.
- Eze 11:19 And I will give them one heart, and I will put a new spirit <07307> within you; and I will take the stony heart out of their flesh, and will give them an heart of flesh:
- Eze 11:24 Afterwards the spirit <07307> took me up, and brought me in a vision by the Spirit <07307> of God into Chaldea, to them of the captivity. So the vision that I had seen went up from me.
- Eze 12:14 And I will scatter toward every wind <07307> all that are about him to help him, and all his bands; and I will draw out the sword after them.
- Eze 13:3 Thus saith the Lord GOD; Woe unto the foolish prophets, that follow their own spirit <07307>, and have seen nothing!

- Eze 13:11 Say unto them which daub *it* with untempered *morter*, that it shall fall: there shall be an overflowing shower; and ye, O great hailstones, shall fall; and a stormy wind <07307> shall rend *it*.
- Eze 13:13 Therefore thus saith the Lord GOD; I will even rend *it* with a stormy wind <07307> in my fury; and there shall be an overflowing shower in mine anger, and great hailstones in *my* fury to consume *it*.
- Eze 17:10 Yea, behold, *being* planted, shall it prosper? shall it not utterly wither, when the east wind <07307> toucheth it? it shall wither in the furrows where it grew.
- Eze 17:21 And all his fugitives with all his bands shall fall by the sword, and they that remain shall be scattered toward all winds <07307> : and ye shall know that I the LORD have spoken it.
- Eze 18:31 Cast away from you all your transgressions, whereby ye have transgressed; and make you a new heart and a new spirit <07307>: for why will ye die, O house of Israel?
- Eze 19:12 But she was plucked up in fury, she was cast down to the ground, and the east wind <07307> dried up her fruit: her strong rods were broken and withered; the fire consumed them.
- Eze 20:32 And that which cometh into your mind <07307> shall not be at all, that ye say, We will be as the heathen, as the families of the countries, to serve wood and stone.
- Eze 21:7 And it shall be, when they say unto thee, Wherefore sighest thou? that thou shalt answer, For the tidings; because it cometh: and every heart shall melt, and all hands shall be feeble, and every spirit <07307> shall faint, and all knees shall be weak as water: behold, it cometh, and shall be brought to pass, saith the Lord GOD.
- Eze 27:26 Thy rowers have brought thee into great waters: the east wind <07307> hath broken thee in the midst of the seas.
- Eze 36:26 A new heart also will I give you, and a new spirit <07307> will I put within you: and I will take away the stony heart out of your flesh, and I will give you an heart of flesh.
- Eze 36:27 And I will put my spirit <07307> within you, and cause you to walk in my statutes, and ye shall keep my judgments, and do *them*.
- Eze 37:1 The hand of the LORD was upon me, and carried me out in the spirit <07307> of the LORD, and set me down in the midst of the valley which was full of bones.
- Eze 37:5 Thus saith the Lord GOD unto these bones; Behold, I will cause breath <07307> to enter into you, and ye shall live:
- Eze 37:6 And I will lay sinews upon you, and will bring up flesh upon you, and cover you with skin, and put breath <07307> in you, and ye shall live; and ye shall know that I am the LORD.
- Eze 37:8 And when I beheld, lo, the sinews and the flesh came up upon them, and the skin covered them above: but *there was* no breath <07307> in them.
- Eze 37:9 Then said he unto me, Prophesy unto the wind <07307>, prophesy, son of man, and say to the wind <07307>, Thus saith the Lord GOD; Come from the four winds <07307>, O breath <07307>, and breathe upon these slain, that they may live.

- Eze 37:10 So I prophesied as he commanded me, and the breath <07307> came into them, and they lived, and stood up upon their feet, an exceeding great army.
- Eze 37:14 And shall put my spirit <07307> in you, and ye shall live, and I shall place you in your own land: then shall ye know that I the LORD have spoken *it*, and performed *it*, saith the LORD.
- Eze 39:29 Neither will I hide my face any more from them: for I have poured out my spirit <07307> upon the house of Israel, saith the Lord GOD.
- Eze 42:16 He measured the east side <07307> with the measuring reed, five hundred reeds, with the measuring reed round about.
- Eze 42:17 He measured the north side <07307>, five hundred reeds, with the measuring reed round about.
- Eze 42:18 He measured the south side <07307>, five hundred reeds, with the measuring reed.
- Eze 42:19 He turned about to the west side <07307>, and measured five hundred reeds with the measuring reed.
- Eze 42:20 He measured it by the four sides <07307>: it had a wall round about, five hundred *reeds* long, and five hundred broad, to make a separation between the sanctuary and the profane place.
- Eze 43:5 So the spirit <07307> took me up, and brought me into the inner court; and, behold, the glory of the LORD filled the house.
- Da 2:1 And in the second year of the reign of Nebuchadnezzar Nebuchadnezzar dreamed dreams, wherewith his spirit <07307> was troubled, and his sleep brake from him.
- Da 2:3 And the king said unto them, I have dreamed a dream, and my spirit <07307> was troubled to know the dream.
- Da 8:8 Therefore the he goat waxed very great: and when he was strong, the great horn was broken; and for it came up four notable ones toward the four winds <07307> of heaven.
- Da 11:4 And when he shall stand up, his kingdom shall be broken, and shall be divided toward the four winds <07307> of heaven; and not to his posterity, nor according to his dominion which he ruled: for his kingdom shall be plucked up, even for others beside those.
- Ho 4:12 My people ask counsel at their stocks, and their staff declareth unto them: for the spirit <07307> of whoredoms hath caused *them* to err, and they have gone a whoring from under their God.
- Ho 4:19 The wind <07307> hath bound her up in her wings, and they shall be ashamed because of their sacrifices.
- Ho 5:4 They will not frame their doings to turn unto their God: for the spirit <07307> of whoredoms *is* in the midst of them, and they have not known the LORD.
- Ho 8:7 For they have sown the wind <07307>, and they shall reap the whirlwind: it hath no stalk: the bud shall yield no meal: if so be it yield, the strangers shall swallow it up.
- Ho 9:7 The days of visitation are come, the days of recompence are come; Israel shall know *it*: the prophet *is* a fool, the spiritual <07307> man *is* mad, for the multitude of thine iniquity, and the great hatred.

- Ho 12:1 Ephraim feedeth on wind <07307>, and followeth after the east wind: he daily increaseth lies and desolation; and they do make a covenant with the Assyrians, and oil is carried into Egypt.
- Ho 13:15 Though he be fruitful among *his* brethren, an east wind shall come, the wind <07307> of the LORD shall come up from the wilderness, and his spring shall become dry, and his fountain shall be dried up: he shall spoil the treasure of all pleasant vessels.
- Joe 2:28 And it shall come to pass afterward, *that* I will pour out my spirit <07307> upon all flesh; and your sons and your daughters shall prophesy, your old men shall dream dreams, your young men shall see visions:
- Joe 2:29 And also upon the servants and upon the handmaids in those days will I pour out my spirit <07307>.
- Am 4:13 For, lo, he that formeth the mountains, and createth the wind <07307>, and declareth unto man what *is* his thought, that maketh the morning darkness, and treadeth upon the high places of the earth, The LORD, The God of hosts, *is* his name.
- Jon 1:4 But the LORD sent out a great wind <07307> into the sea, and there was a mighty tempest in the sea, so that the ship was like to be broken.
- Jon 4:8 And it came to pass, when the sun did arise, that God prepared a vehement east wind <07307>; and the sun beat upon the head of Jonah, that he fainted, and wished in himself to die, and said, *It is* better for me to die than to live.
- Mic 2:7 O *thou that art* named the house of Jacob, is the spirit <07307> of the LORD straitened? *are* these his doings? do not my words do good to him that walketh uprightly?
- Mic 2:11 If a man walking in the spirit <07307> and falsehood do lie, saying, I will prophesy unto thee of wine and of strong drink; he shall even be the prophet of this people.
- Mic 3:8 But truly I am full of power by the spirit <07307> of the LORD, and of judgment, and of might, to declare unto Jacob his transgression, and to Israel his sin.
- Hab 1:11 Then shall *his* mind <07307> change, and he shall pass over, and offend, *imputing* this his power unto his god.
- Hab 2:19 Woe unto him that saith to the wood, Awake; to the dumb stone, Arise, it shall teach! Behold, it *is* laid over with gold and silver, and *there is* no breath <07307> at all in the midst of it.
- Hag 1:14 And the LORD stirred up the spirit <07307> of Zerubbabel the son of Shealtiel, governor of Judah, and the spirit <07307> of Joshua the son of Josedech, the high priest, and the spirit <07307> of all the remnant of the people; and they came and did work in the house of the LORD of hosts, their God,
- Hag 2:5 *According to* the word that I covenanted with you when ye came out of Egypt, so my spirit <07307> remaineth among you: fear ye not.
- Zec 2:6 Ho, ho, *come forth*, and flee from the land of the north, saith the LORD: for I have spread you abroad as the four winds <07307> of the heaven, saith the LORD.
- Zec 4:6 Then he answered and spake unto me, saying, This *is* the word of the LORD unto Zerubbabel, saying, Not by might, nor by power, but by my spirit <07307>, saith the LORD of hosts.

- Zec 5:9 Then lifted I up mine eyes, and looked, and, behold, there came out two women, and the wind <07307> was in their wings; for they had wings like the wings of a stork: and they lifted up the ephah between the earth and the heaven.
- Zec 6:5 And the angel answered and said unto me, These *are* the four spirits <a>07307> of the heavens, which go forth from standing before the Lord of all the earth.
- Zec 6:8 Then cried he upon me, and spake unto me, saying, Behold, these that go toward the north country have quieted my spirit color: blue; in the north country.
- Zec 7:12 Yea, they made their hearts as an adamant stone, lest they should hear the law, and the words which the LORD of hosts hath sent in his spirit <07307> by the former prophets: therefore came a great wrath from the LORD of hosts.
- Zec 12:1 The burden of the word of the LORD for Israel, saith the LORD, which stretcheth forth the heavens, and layeth the foundation of the earth, and formeth the spirit <07307> of man within him.
- Zec 12:10 And I will pour upon the house of David, and upon the inhabitants of Jerusalem, the spirit <07307> of grace and of supplications: and they shall look upon me whom they have pierced, and they shall mourn for him, as one mourneth for *his* only *son*, and shall be in bitterness for him, as one that is in bitterness for *his* firstborn
- Zec 13:2 And it shall come to pass in that day, saith the LORD of hosts, *that* I will cut off the names of the idols out of the land, and they shall no more be remembered: and also I will cause the prophets and the unclean spirit <07307> to pass out of the land.
- Mal 2:15 And did not he make one? Yet had he the residue of the spirit <07307>. And wherefore one? That he might seek a godly seed. Therefore take heed to your spirit <07307>, and let none deal treacherously against the wife of his youth.
- Mal 2:16 For the LORD, the God of Israel, saith that he hateth putting away: for *one* covereth violence with his garment, saith the LORD of hosts: therefore take heed to your spirit <07307>, that ye deal not treacherously.

07308 רוֹד ruwach (Aramaic) (roo'- akh)

```
corresponding to <u>07307</u>; TWOT-2991a; n f AV-spirit 8, wind 2, mind 1; 11
1) spirit, wind
1a) wind
1b) spirit
1b1) of man
1b2) seat of the mind
```

- Da 2:35 Then was the iron, the clay, the brass, the silver, and the gold, broken to pieces together, and became like the chaff of the summer threshingfloors; and the wind <07308> carried them away, that no place was found for them: and the stone that smote the image became a great mountain, and filled the whole earth.
- Da 4:8 But at the last Daniel came in before me, whose name was Belteshazzar, according to the name of my god, and in whom is the spirit <07308> of the holy gods: and before him I told the dream, saying,

- Da 4:9 O Belteshazzar, master of the magicians, because I know that the spirit <07308> of the holy gods *is* in thee, and no secret troubleth thee, tell me the visions of my dream that I have seen, and the interpretation thereof.
- Da 4:18 This dream I king Nebuchadnezzar have seen. Now thou, O Belteshazzar, declare the interpretation thereof, forasmuch as all the wise *men* of my kingdom are not able to make known unto me the interpretation: but thou *art* able; for the spirit <07308> of the holy gods *is* in thee.
- Da 5:11 There is a man in thy kingdom, in whom *is* the spirit <07308> of the holy gods; and in the days of thy father light and understanding and wisdom, like the wisdom of the gods, was found in him; whom the king Nebuchadnezzar thy father, the king, *I* say, thy father, made master of the magicians, astrologers, Chaldeans, and soothsayers;
- Da 5:12 Forasmuch as an excellent spirit <07308>, and knowledge, and understanding, interpreting of dreams, and shewing of hard sentences, and dissolving of doubts, were found in the same Daniel, whom the king named Belteshazzar: now let Daniel be called, and he will shew the interpretation.
- Da 5:14 I have even heard of thee, that the spirit <07308> of the gods *is* in thee, and *that* light and understanding and excellent wisdom is found in thee.
- Da 5:20 But when his heart was lifted up, and his mind <07308> hardened in pride, he was deposed from his kingly throne, and they took his glory from him:
- Da 6:3 Then this Daniel was preferred above the presidents and princes, because an excellent spirit <07308> was in him; and the king thought to set him over the whole realm.
- Da 7:2 Daniel spake and said, I saw in my vision by night, and, behold, the four winds <07308> of the heaven strove upon the great sea.
- Da 7:15 I Daniel was grieved in my spirit <07308> in the midst of *my* body, and the visions of my head troubled me.

0178 אוב 'owb (obe)

from the same as <u>01</u> (apparently through the idea of prattling a father's name); TWOT-37a; n m AV-familiar spirit(s) 16, bottles 1; 17

- 1) water skin bottle
- 2) necromancer
 - 1b) necromancer, one who evokes the dead
 - 1c) ghost, spirit of a dead one
 - 1d) practice of necromancy
- 3) one that has a familiar spirit
- Leviticus 19:31 Regard not them that have familiar spirits <0178>, neither seek after wizards, to be defiled by them: I am the LORD your God.
- Leviticus 20:6 And the soul that turneth after such as have familiar spirits <0178>, and after wizards, to go a whoring after them, I will even set my face against that soul, and will cut him off from among his people.
- Leviticus 20:27 A man also or woman that hath a familiar spirit <0178>, or that is a wizard, shall surely be put to death: they shall stone them with stones: their blood shall be upon them.
- Deuteronomy 18:11 Or a charmer, or a consulter with familiar spirits <0178>, or a wizard, or a necromancer.
- 1 Samuel 28:3 Now Samuel was dead, and all Israel had lamented him, and buried him in Ramah, even in his own city. And Saul had put away those that had familiar spirits color: blue;, and the wizards, out of the land.
- 1 Samuel 28:7 Then said Saul unto his servants, Seek me a woman that hath a familiar spirit <0178>, that I may go to her, and enquire of her. And his servants said to him, Behold, there is a woman that hath a familiar spirit <0178> at Endor.
- 1 Samuel 28:8 And Saul disguised himself, and put on other raiment, and he went, and two men with him, and they came to the woman by night: and he said, I pray thee, divine unto me by the familiar spirit <0178>, and bring me him up, whom I shall name unto thee.
- 1 Samuel 28:9 And the woman said unto him, Behold, thou knowest what Saul hath done, how he hath cut off those that have familiar spirits <0178>, and the wizards, out of the land: wherefore then layest thou a snare for my life, to cause me to die?
- 2 Kings 21:6 And he made his son pass through the fire, and observed times, and used enchantments, and dealt with familiar spirits <0178> and wizards: he wrought much wickedness in the sight of the LORD, to provoke *him* to anger.
- 2 Kings 23:24 Moreover the *workers with* familiar spirits <0178>, and the wizards, and the images, and the idols, and all the abominations that were spied in the land of Judah and in Jerusalem, did Josiah put away, that he might perform the words of the law which were written in the book that Hilkiah the priest found in the house of the LORD.
- 1 Chronicles 10:13 So Saul died for his transgression which he committed against the LORD, even against the word of the LORD, which he kept not, and also for asking counsel of one that had a familiar spirit <0178>, to enquire of it;

- 2 Chronicles 33:6 And he caused his children to pass through the fire in the valley of the son of Hinnom: also he observed times, and used enchantments, and used witchcraft, and dealt with a familiar spirit <0178>, and with wizards: he wrought much evil in the sight of the LORD, to provoke him to anger.
- Job 32:19 Behold, my belly *is* as wine *which* hath no vent; it is ready to burst like new bottles <0178>.
- Isaiah 8:19 And when they shall say unto you, Seek unto them that have familiar spirits <0178>, and unto wizards that peep, and that mutter: should not a people seek unto their God? for the living to the dead?
- Isaiah 19:3 And the spirit of Egypt shall fail in the midst thereof; and I will destroy the counsel thereof: and they shall seek to the idols, and to the charmers, and to them that have familiar spirits <0178>, and to the wizards.
- Isaiah 29:4 And thou shalt be brought down, *and* shalt speak out of the ground, and thy speech shall be low out of the dust, and thy voice shall be, as of one that hath a familiar spirit <0178>, out of the ground, and thy speech shall whisper out of the dust.

01172 בעלה ba'alah bah-al-aw'

from of 01167; TWOT-262b; n f

AV-mistress 2, hath (a familiar spirit) 2; 4

- 1) mistress, female owner
- 2) sorceress, necromancer (noun of relationship)
- 1 Samuel 28:7 Then said Saul unto his servants, Seek me a woman that hath <01172> a familiar spirit, that I may go to her, and enquire of her. And his servants said to him, Behold, *there is* a woman that hath <01172> a familiar spirit at Endor.
- 1 Kings 17:17 And it came to pass after these things, *that* the son of the woman, the mistress <01172> of the house, fell sick; and his sickness was so sore, that there was no breath left in him.
- Nahum 3:4 Because of the multitude of the whoredoms of the wellfavoured harlot, the mistress <01172> of witchcrafts, that selleth nations through her whoredoms, and families through her witchcrafts.

ידעני 93049 (yid-deh-o-nee')

from 03045; TWOT-848d; n m

AV-wizard 11; 11

- 1) a knower, one who has a familiar spirit
 - 1a) a familiar spirit, soothsayer, necromancer (meton)
- Leviticus 19:31 Regard not them that have familiar spirits, neither seek after wizards <03049>, to be defiled by them: I am the LORD your God.
- Leviticus 20:6 And the soul that turneth after such as have familiar spirits, and after wizards <03049>, to go a whoring after them, I will even set my face against that soul, and will cut him off from among his people.

- Leviticus 20:27 A man also or woman that hath a familiar spirit, or that is a wizard <03049>, shall surely be put to death: they shall stone them with stones: their blood shall be upon them.
- Deuteronomy 18:11 Or a charmer, or a consulter with familiar spirits, or a wizard <03049>, or a necromancer.
- 1 Samuel 28:3 Now Samuel was dead, and all Israel had lamented him, and buried him in Ramah, even in his own city. And Saul had put away those that had familiar spirits, and the wizards <03049>, out of the land.
- 1 Samuel 28:9 And the woman said unto him, Behold, thou knowest what Saul hath done, how he hath cut off those that have familiar spirits, and the wizards <03049>, out of the land: wherefore then layest thou a snare for my life, to cause me to die?
- 2 Kings 21:6 And he made his son pass through the fire, and observed times, and used enchantments, and dealt with familiar spirits and wizards <03049>: he wrought much wickedness in the sight of the LORD, to provoke *him* to anger.
- 2 Kings 23:24 Moreover the *workers with* familiar spirits, and the wizards <03049>, and the images, and the idols, and all the abominations that were spied in the land of Judah and in Jerusalem, did Josiah put away, that he might perform the words of the law which were written in the book that Hilkiah the priest found in the house of the LORD.
- 2 Chronicles 33:6 And he caused his children to pass through the fire in the valley of the son of Hinnom: also he observed times, and used enchantments, and used witchcraft, and dealt with a familiar spirit, and with wizards <03049>: he wrought much evil in the sight of the LORD, to provoke him to anger.
- Isaiah 8:19 And when they shall say unto you, Seek unto them that have familiar spirits, and unto wizards <03049> that peep, and that mutter: should not a people seek unto their God? for the living to the dead?
- Isaiah 19:3 And the spirit of Egypt shall fail in the midst thereof; and I will destroy the counsel thereof: and they shall seek to the idols, and to the charmers, and to them that have familiar spirits, and to the wizards <03049>.

05012 נבא naba' naw-baw'

```
a primitive root; TWOT-1277; v
AV-prophesy 111, prophesying 2, prophet 2; 115
1) to prophesy
1a) (Niphal)
1a1) to prophesy
1a1a) under influence of divine spirit
1a1b) of false prophets
1b) (Hithpael)
1b1) to prophesy
1b1a) under influence of divine spirit
1b1b) of false prophets
```

Numbers 11:25 And the LORD came down in a cloud, and spake unto him, and took of the spirit that *was* upon him, and gave *it* unto the seventy elders: and it came to

- pass, *that*, when the spirit rested upon them, they prophesied <05012>, and did not cease.
- Numbers 11:26 But there remained two *of the* men in the camp, the name of the one *was* Eldad, and the name of the other Medad: and the spirit rested upon them; and they *were* of them that were written, but went not out unto the tabernacle: and they prophesied <05012> in the camp.
- Numbers 11:27 And there ran a young man, and told Moses, and said, Eldad and Medad do prophesy <05012> in the camp.
- 1 Samuel 10:5 After that thou shalt come to the hill of God, where *is* the garrison of the Philistines: and it shall come to pass, when thou art come thither to the city, that thou shalt meet a company of prophets coming down from the high place with a psaltery, and a tabret, and a pipe, and a harp, before them; and they shall prophesy <05012>:
- 1 Samuel 10:6 And the Spirit of the LORD will come upon thee, and thou shalt prophesy <05012> with them, and shalt be turned into another man.
- 1 Samuel 10:10 And when they came thither to the hill, behold, a company of prophets met him; and the Spirit of God came upon him, and he prophesied <05012> among them.
- 1 Samuel 10:11 And it came to pass, when all that knew him beforetime saw that, behold, he prophesied <05012> among the prophets, then the people said one to another, What *is* this *that* is come unto the son of Kish? *Is* Saul also among the prophets?
- 1 Samuel 10:13 And when he had made an end of prophesying <05012>, he came to the high place.
- 1 Samuel 18:10 And it came to pass on the morrow, that the evil spirit from God came upon Saul, and he prophesied <05012> in the midst of the house: and David played with his hand, as at other times: and *there was* a javelin in Saul's hand.
- 1 Samuel 19:20 And Saul sent messengers to take David: and when they saw the company of the prophets prophesying <05012>, and Samuel standing as appointed over them, the Spirit of God was upon the messengers of Saul, and they also prophesied <05012>.
- 1 Samuel 19:21 And when it was told Saul, he sent other messengers, and they prophesied <05012> likewise. And Saul sent messengers again the third time, and they prophesied <05012> also.
- 1 Samuel 19:23 And he went thither to Naioth in Ramah: and the Spirit of God was upon him also, and he went on, and prophesied <05012>, until he came to Naioth in Ramah.
- 1 Samuel 19:24 And he stripped off his clothes also, and prophesied <05012> before Samuel in like manner, and lay down naked all that day and all that night. Wherefore they say, *Is* Saul also among the prophets?
- 1 Kings 18:29 And it came to pass, when midday was past, and they prophesied <05012> until the *time* of the offering of the *evening* sacrifice, that *there was* neither voice, nor any to answer, nor any that regarded.
- 1 Kings 22:8 And the king of Israel said unto Jehoshaphat, *There is* yet one man, Micaiah the son of Imlah, by whom we may enquire of the LORD: but I hate him; for

- he doth not prophesy <05012> good concerning me, but evil. And Jehoshaphat said, Let not the king say so.
- 1 Kings 22:10 And the king of Israel and Jehoshaphat the king of Judah sat each on his throne, having put on their robes, in a void place in the entrance of the gate of Samaria; and all the prophets prophesied <05012> before them.
- 1 Kings 22:12 And all the prophets prophesied <05012> so, saying, Go up to Ramothgilead, and prosper: for the LORD shall deliver *it* into the king's hand.
- 1 Kings 22:18 And the king of Israel said unto Jehoshaphat, Did I not tell thee that he would prophesy <05012> no good concerning me, but evil?
- 1 Chronicles 25:1 Moreover David and the captains of the host separated to the service of the sons of Asaph, and of Heman, and of Jeduthun, who should prophesy <05012> with harps, with psalteries, and with cymbals: and the number of the workmen according to their service was:
- 1 Chronicles 25:2 Of the sons of Asaph; Zaccur, and Joseph, and Nethaniah, and Asarelah, the sons of Asaph under the hands of Asaph, which prophesied <05012> according to the order of the king.
- 1 Chronicles 25:3 Of Jeduthun: the sons of Jeduthun; Gedaliah, and Zeri, and Jeshaiah, Hashabiah, and Mattithiah, six, under the hands of their father Jeduthun, who prophesied <05012> with a harp, to give thanks and to praise the LORD.
- 2 Chronicles 18:7 And the king of Israel said unto Jehoshaphat, *There is* yet one man, by whom we may enquire of the LORD: but I hate him; for he never prophesied <05012> good unto me, but always evil: the same *is* Micaiah the son of Imla. And Jehoshaphat said, Let not the king say so.
- 2 Chronicles 18:9 And the king of Israel and Jehoshaphat king of Judah sat either of them on his throne, clothed in *their* robes, and they sat in a void place at the entering in of the gate of Samaria; and all the prophets prophesied <05012> before them.
- 2 Chronicles 18:11 And all the prophets prophesied <05012> so, saying, Go up to Ramothgilead, and prosper: for the LORD shall deliver *it* into the hand of the king.
- 2 Chronicles 18:17 And the king of Israel said to Jehoshaphat, Did I not tell thee *that* he would not prophesy <05012> good unto me, but evil?
- 2 Chronicles 20:37 Then Eliezer the son of Dodavah of Mareshah prophesied <05012> against Jehoshaphat, saying, Because thou hast joined thyself with Ahaziah, the LORD hath broken thy works. And the ships were broken, that they were not able to go to Tarshish.
- Jeremiah 2:8 The priests said not, Where *is* the LORD? and they that handle the law knew me not: the pastors also transgressed against me, and the prophets prophesied <05012> by Baal, and walked after *things that* do not profit.
- Jeremiah 5:31 The prophets prophesy <05012> falsely, and the priests bear rule by their means; and my people love to have it so: and what will ye do in the end thereof?
- Jeremiah 11:21 Therefore thus saith the LORD of the men of Anathoth, that seek thy life, saying, Prophesy <05012> not in the name of the LORD, that thou die not by our hand:
- Jeremiah 14:14 Then the LORD said unto me, The prophets prophesy <05012> lies in my name: I sent them not, neither have I commanded them, neither spake unto

- them: they prophesy <05012> unto you a false vision and divination, and a thing of nought, and the deceit of their heart.
- Jeremiah 14:15 Therefore thus saith the LORD concerning the prophets that prophesy <05012> in my name, and I sent them not, yet they say, Sword and famine shall not be in this land; By sword and famine shall those prophets be consumed.
- Jeremiah 14:16 And the people to whom they prophesy <05012> shall be cast out in the streets of Jerusalem because of the famine and the sword; and they shall have none to bury them, them, their wives, nor their sons, nor their daughters: for I will pour their wickedness upon them.
- Jeremiah 19:14 Then came Jeremiah from Tophet, whither the LORD had sent him to prophesy <05012>; and he stood in the court of the LORD'S house; and said to all the people,
- Jeremiah 20:1 Now Pashur the son of Immer the priest, who *was* also chief governor in the house of the LORD, heard that Jeremiah prophesied <05012> these things.
- Jeremiah 20:6 And thou, Pashur, and all that dwell in thine house shall go into captivity: and thou shalt come to Babylon, and there thou shalt die, and shalt be buried there, thou, and all thy friends, to whom thou hast prophesied <05012> lies.
- Jeremiah 23:13 And I have seen folly in the prophets of Samaria; they prophesied <05012> in Baal, and caused my people Israel to err.
- Jeremiah 23:16 Thus saith the LORD of hosts, Hearken not unto the words of the prophets that prophesy <05012> unto you: they make you vain: they speak a vision of their own heart, *and* not out of the mouth of the LORD.
- Jeremiah 23:21 I have not sent these prophets, yet they ran: I have not spoken to them, yet they prophesied <05012>.
- Jeremiah 23:25 I have heard what the prophets said, that prophesy <05012> lies in my name, saying, I have dreamed, I have dreamed.
- Jeremiah 23:26 How long shall *this* be in the heart of the prophets that prophesy <05012> lies? yea, *they are* prophets of the deceit of their own heart;
- Jeremiah 23:32 Behold, I *am* against them that prophesy <05012> false dreams, saith the LORD, and do tell them, and cause my people to err by their lies, and by their lightness; yet I sent them not, nor commanded them: therefore they shall not profit this people at all, saith the LORD.
- Jeremiah 25:13 And I will bring upon that land all my words which I have pronounced against it, even all that is written in this book, which Jeremiah hath prophesied <05012> against all the nations.
- Jeremiah 25:30 Therefore prophesy <05012> thou against them all these words, and say unto them, The LORD shall roar from on high, and utter his voice from his holy habitation; he shall mightily roar upon his habitation; he shall give a shout, as they that tread *the grapes*, against all the inhabitants of the earth.
- Jeremiah 26:9 Why hast thou prophesied <05012> in the name of the LORD, saying, This house shall be like Shiloh, and this city shall be desolate without an inhabitant? And all the people were gathered against Jeremiah in the house of the LORD.
- Jeremiah 26:11 Then spake the priests and the prophets unto the princes and to all the people, saying, This man *is* worthy to die; for he hath prophesied <color: blue; against this city, as ye have heard with your ears.

- Jeremiah 26:12 Then spake Jeremiah unto all the princes and to all the people, saying, The LORD sent me to prophesy <05012> against this house and against this city all the words that ye have heard.
- Jeremiah 26:18 Micah the Morasthite prophesied <05012> in the days of Hezekiah king of Judah, and spake to all the people of Judah, saying, Thus saith the LORD of hosts; Zion shall be plowed *like* a field, and Jerusalem shall become heaps, and the mountain of the house as the high places of a forest.
- Jeremiah 26:20 And there was also a man that prophesied <05012> in the name of the LORD, Urijah the son of Shemaiah of Kirjathjearim, who prophesied <05012> against this city and against this land according to all the words of Jeremiah:
- Jeremiah 27:10 For they prophesy <05012> a lie unto you, to remove you far from your land; and that I should drive you out, and ye should perish.
- Jeremiah 27:14 Therefore hearken not unto the words of the prophets that speak unto you, saying, Ye shall not serve the king of Babylon: for they prophesy <05012> a lie unto you.
- Jeremiah 27:15 For I have not sent them, saith the LORD, yet they prophesy <05012> a lie in my name; that I might drive you out, and that ye might perish, ye, and the prophets that prophesy <05012> unto you.
- Jeremiah 27:16 Also I spake to the priests and to all this people, saying, Thus saith the LORD; Hearken not to the words of your prophets that prophesy <05012> unto you, saying, Behold, the vessels of the LORD'S house shall now shortly be brought again from Babylon: for they prophesy <05012> a lie unto you.
- Jeremiah 28:6 Even the prophet Jeremiah said, Amen: the LORD do so: the LORD perform thy words which thou hast prophesied <05012>, to bring again the vessels of the LORD'S house, and all that is carried away captive, from Babylon into this place.
- Jeremiah 28:8 The prophets that have been before me and before thee of old prophesied <05012> both against many countries, and against great kingdoms, of war, and of evil, and of pestilence.
- Jeremiah 28:9 The prophet which prophesieth <05012> of peace, when the word of the prophet shall come to pass, *then* shall the prophet be known, that the LORD hath truly sent him.
- Jeremiah 29:9 For they prophesy <05012> falsely unto you in my name: I have not sent them, saith the LORD.
- Jer 29:21 Thus saith the LORD of hosts, the God of Israel, of Ahab the son of Kolaiah, and of Zedekiah the son of Maaseiah, which prophesy <05012> a lie unto you in my name; Behold, I will deliver them into the hand of Nebuchadrezzar king of Babylon; and he shall slay them before your eyes;
- Jer 29:26 The LORD hath made thee priest in the stead of Jehoiada the priest, that ye should be officers in the house of the LORD, for every man *that is* mad, and maketh himself a prophet <05012>, that thou shouldest put him in prison, and in the stocks.
- Jer 29:27 Now therefore why hast thou not reproved Jeremiah of Anathoth, which maketh himself a prophet <05012> to you?
- Jer 29:31 Send to all them of the captivity, saying, Thus saith the LORD concerning Shemaiah the Nehelamite; Because that Shemaiah hath prophesied <05012> unto you, and I sent him not, and he caused you to trust in a lie:

- Jer 32:3 For Zedekiah king of Judah had shut him up, saying, Wherefore dost thou prophesy <05012>, and say, Thus saith the LORD, Behold, I will give this city into the hand of the king of Babylon, and he shall take it;
- Jer 37:19 Where *are* now your prophets which prophesied <05012> unto you, saying, The king of Babylon shall not come against you, nor against this land?
- Eze 4:7 Therefore thou shalt set thy face toward the siege of Jerusalem, and thine arm *shall be* uncovered, and thou shalt prophesy <05012> against it.
- Eze 6:2 Son of man, set thy face toward the mountains of Israel, and prophesy <05012> against them,
- Eze 11:4 Therefore prophesy <05012> against them, prophesy <05012>, O son of man.
- Eze 11:13 And it came to pass, when I prophesied <05012>, that Pelatiah the son of Benaiah died. Then fell I down upon my face, and cried with a loud voice, and said, Ah Lord GOD! wilt thou make a full end of the remnant of Israel?
- Eze 12:27 Son of man, behold, *they of* the house of Israel say, The vision that he seeth *is* for many days *to come*, and he prophesieth color: vertical color: vert
- Eze 13:2 Son of man, prophesy <05012> against the prophets of Israel that prophesy <05012>, and say thou unto them that prophesy out of their own hearts, Hear ye the word of the LORD;
- Eze 13:16 *To wit*, the prophets of Israel which prophesy <05012> concerning Jerusalem, and which see visions of peace for her, and *there is* no peace, saith the Lord GOD.
- Eze 13:17 Likewise, thou son of man, set thy face against the daughters of thy people, which prophesy <05012> out of their own heart; and prophesy <05012> thou against them,
- Eze 20:46 Son of man, set thy face toward the south, and drop *thy word* toward the south, and prophesy <05012> against the forest of the south field;
- Eze 21:2 Son of man, set thy face toward Jerusalem, and drop *thy word* toward the holy places, and prophesy <05012> against the land of Israel,
- Eze 21:9 Son of man, prophesy <05012>, and say, Thus saith the LORD; Say, A sword, a sword is sharpened, and also furbished:
- Eze 21:14 Thou therefore, son of man, prophesy <05012>, and smite *thine* hands together, and let the sword be doubled the third time, the sword of the slain: it *is* the sword of the great *men that are* slain, which entereth into their privy chambers.
- Eze 21:28 And thou, son of man, prophesy <05012> and say, Thus saith the Lord GOD concerning the Ammonites, and concerning their reproach; even say thou, The sword, the sword *is* drawn: for the slaughter *it is* furbished, to consume because of the glittering:
- Eze 25:2 Son of man, set thy face against the Ammonites, and prophesy <05012> against them;
- Eze 28:21 Son of man, set thy face against Zidon, and prophesy <05012> against it, Eze 29:2 Son of man, set thy face against Pharaoh king of Egypt, and prophesy
 - <05012> against him, and against all Egypt:
- Eze 30:2 Son of man, prophesy <05012> and say, Thus saith the Lord GOD; Howl ye, Woe worth the day!

- Eze 34:2 Son of man, prophesy <05012> against the shepherds of Israel, prophesy <05012>, and say unto them, Thus saith the Lord GOD unto the shepherds; Woe be to the shepherds of Israel that do feed themselves! should not the shepherds feed the flocks?
- Eze 35:2 Son of man, set thy face against mount Seir, and prophesy <05012> against it.
- Eze 36:1 Also, thou son of man, prophesy <05012> unto the mountains of Israel, and say, Ye mountains of Israel, hear the word of the LORD:
- Eze 36:3 Therefore prophesy <05012> and say, Thus saith the Lord GOD; Because they have made *you* desolate, and swallowed you up on every side, that ye might be a possession unto the residue of the heathen, and ye are taken up in the lips of talkers, and *are* an infamy of the people:
- Eze 36:6 Prophesy <05012> therefore concerning the land of Israel, and say unto the mountains, and to the hills, to the rivers, and to the valleys, Thus saith the Lord GOD; Behold, I have spoken in my jealousy and in my fury, because ye have borne the shame of the heathen:
- Eze 37:4 Again he said unto me, Prophesy <05012> upon these bones, and say unto them, O ye dry bones, hear the word of the LORD.
- Eze 37:7 So I prophesied <05012> as I was commanded: and as I prophesied <05012>, there was a noise, and behold a shaking, and the bones came together, bone to his bone.
- Eze 37:9 Then said he unto me, Prophesy <05012> unto the wind, prophesy <05012>, son of man, and say to the wind, Thus saith the Lord GOD; Come from the four winds, O breath, and breathe upon these slain, that they may live.
- Eze 37:10 So I prophesied <05012> as he commanded me, and the breath came into them, and they lived, and stood up upon their feet, an exceeding great army.
- Eze 37:12 Therefore prophesy <05012> and say unto them, Thus saith the Lord GOD; Behold, O my people, I will open your graves, and cause you to come up out of your graves, and bring you into the land of Israel.
- Eze 38:2 Son of man, set thy face against Gog, the land of Magog, the chief prince of Meshech and Tubal, and prophesy <05012> against him,
- Eze 38:14 Therefore, son of man, prophesy <05012> and say unto Gog, Thus saith the Lord GOD; In that day when my people of Israel dwelleth safely, shalt thou not know it?
- Eze 38:17 Thus saith the Lord GOD; *Art* thou he of whom I have spoken in old time by my servants the prophets of Israel, which prophesied <05012> in those days *many* years that I would bring thee against them?
- Eze 39:1 Therefore, thou son of man, prophesy <05012> against Gog, and say, Thus saith the Lord GOD; Behold, I *am* against thee, O Gog, the chief prince of Meshech and Tubal:
- Joe 2:28 And it shall come to pass afterward, *that* I will pour out my spirit upon all flesh; and your sons and your daughters shall prophesy <05012>, your old men shall dream dreams, your young men shall see visions:
- Am 2:12 But ye gave the Nazarites wine to drink; and commanded the prophets, saying, Prophesy <05012> not.

- Am 3:8 The lion hath roared, who will not fear? the Lord GOD hath spoken, who can but prophesy <05012>?
- Am 7:12 Also Amaziah said unto Amos, O thou seer, go, flee thee away into the land of Judah, and there eat bread, and prophesy <05012> there:
- Am 7:13 But prophesy <05012> not again any more at Bethel: for it *is* the king's chapel, and it *is* the king's court.
- Am 7:15 And the LORD took me as I followed the flock, and the LORD said unto me, Go, prophesy <05012> unto my people Israel.
- Am 7:16 Now therefore hear thou the word of the LORD: Thou sayest, Prophesy <05012> not against Israel, and drop not *thy word* against the house of Isaac.
- Zec 13:3 And it shall come to pass, *that* when any shall yet prophesy <05012>, then his father and his mother that begat him shall say unto him, Thou shalt not live; for thou speakest lies in the name of the LORD: and his father and his mother that begat him shall thrust him through when he prophesieth <05012>.
- Zec 13:4 And it shall come to pass in that day, *that* the prophets shall be ashamed every one of his vision, when he hath prophesied <05012>; neither shall they wear a rough garment to deceive:

05396 נשמא nishma' (Aramaic) (nish-maw')

```
corresponding to <u>05397</u>; TWOT-2876; n f AV-breath 1; 1
1) breath, spirit
```

05397 נשמה n@shamah (nesh-aw-maw')

```
from 05395; TWOT-1433a; n f
AV-breath 17, blast 3, spirit 2, inspiration 1, souls 1; 24
1) breath, spirit
1a) breath (of God)
1b) breath (of man)
1c) every breathing thing
1d) spirit (of man)
```

- Ge 2:7 And the LORD God formed man *of* the dust of the ground, and breathed into his nostrils the breath <05397> of life; and man became a living soul.
- Ge 7:22 All in whose nostrils was the breath <05397> of life, of all that was in the dry land, died.

- De 20:16 But of the cities of these people, which the LORD thy God doth give thee *for* an inheritance, thou shalt save alive nothing that breatheth <05397>:
- Jos 10:40 So Joshua smote all the country of the hills, and of the south, and of the vale, and of the springs, and all their kings: he left none remaining, but utterly destroyed all that breathed <05397>, as the LORD God of Israel commanded.
- Jos 11:11 And they smote all the souls that *were* therein with the edge of the sword, utterly destroying *them*: there was not any left to breathe <05397>: and he burnt Hazor with fire.
- Jos 11:14 And all the spoil of these cities, and the cattle, the children of Israel took for a prey unto themselves; but every man they smote with the edge of the sword, until they had destroyed them, neither left they any to breathe <05397>.
- 2Sa 22:16 And the channels of the sea appeared, the foundations of the world were discovered, at the rebuking of the LORD, at the blast <05397> of the breath of his nostrils.
- 1Ki 15:29 And it came to pass, when he reigned, *that* he smote all the house of Jeroboam; he left not to Jeroboam any that breathed <05397>, until he had destroyed him, according unto the saying of the LORD, which he spake by his servant Ahijah the Shilonite:
- 1Ki 17:17 And it came to pass after these things, *that* the son of the woman, the mistress of the house, fell sick; and his sickness was so sore, that there was no breath <05397> left in him.
- Job 4:9 By the blast <05397> of God they perish, and by the breath of his nostrils are they consumed.
- Job 26:4 To whom hast thou uttered words? and whose spirit <05397> came from thee?
- Job 27:3 All the while my breath <05397> is in me, and the spirit of God is in my nostrils:
- Job 32:8 But *there is* a spirit in man: and the inspiration <05397> of the Almighty giveth them understanding.
- Job 33:4 The Spirit of God hath made me, and the breath <05397> of the Almighty hath given me life.
- Job 34:14 If he set his heart upon man, *if* he gather unto himself his spirit and his breath <05397>:
- Job 37:10 By the breath <05397> of God frost is given: and the breadth of the waters is straitened.
- Ps 18:15 Then the channels of waters were seen, and the foundations of the world were discovered at thy rebuke, O LORD, at the blast <05397> of the breath of thy nostrils.
- Ps 150:6 Let every thing that hath breath <05397> praise the LORD. Praise ye the LORD.
- Pr 20:27 The spirit <05397> of man *is* the candle of the LORD, searching all the inward parts of the belly.
- Isa 2:22 Cease ye from man, whose breath <05397> is in his nostrils: for wherein is he to be accounted of?

- Isa 30:33 For Tophet *is* ordained of old; yea, for the king it is prepared; he hath made *it* deep *and* large: the pile thereof *is* fire and much wood; the breath <05397> of the LORD, like a stream of brimstone, doth kindle it.
- Isa 42:5 Thus saith God the LORD, he that created the heavens, and stretched them out; he that spread forth the earth, and that which cometh out of it; he that giveth breath <05397> unto the people upon it, and spirit to them that walk therein:
- Isa 57:16 For I will not contend for ever, neither will I be always wroth: for the spirit should fail before me, and the souls <05397> which I have made.
- Da 10:17 For how can the servant of this my lord talk with this my lord? for as for me, straightway there remained no strength in me, neither is there breath <05397> left in me.

07119 קר qar kar

contracted from an unused root meaning to chill; TWOT-2077a; adj AV-cold 2, variant 1; 3
1) cool
1a) cool, calm, self-possessed (of spirit)

Pr 17:27 He that hath knowledge spareth his words: *and* a man of understanding is of an excellent <07119> spirit.

Pr 25:25 As cold <07119> waters to a thirsty soul, so is good news from a far country. Jer 18:14 Will a man leave the snow of Lebanon which cometh from the rock of the field? or shall the cold <07119> flowing waters that come from another place be forsaken?

New Testament Greek: Spirit

G1142 ... 1142. daimwn daimon dah'-ee-mown ; from daiw daio (to distribute fortunes); a daemon or supernatural spirit (of a bad nature):--devil. ...

G2473 ... 2473. isoqucov isopsuchos ee-sop'-soo-khos; from 2470 and 5590; of similar spirit:--likeminded. ...

G3955 ... 3955. parrhsiazomai parrhesiazomai par-hray-see-ad'-zom-ahee; middle voice from 3954; to be frank in utterance, or confident in spirit and demeanor:--be (wax) bold, (preach, speak) boldly. ...

G4151 ... 4151. pneuma pneuma pnyoo'-mah; from 4154; a current of air, i.e. breath (blast) or a breeze; by analogy or figuratively, a <u>spirit</u>, i.e. (human) the rational soul, (by implication) vital principle, mental disposition, etc., or (superhuman) an angel, demon, or (divine) God, Christ's <u>spirit</u>, the Holy <u>Spirit</u>:--ghost, life, <u>spirit</u>(-ual, -ually), mind. Compare 5590. ...

G4152 ... 4152. pneumatikov pneumatikos pnyoo-mat-ik-os'; from 4151; non-carnal, i.e. (humanly) ethereal (as opposed to gross), or (daemoniacally) a <u>spirit</u> (concretely), or (divinely) supernatural, regenerate, religious:--spiritual. Compare 5591. ...

G4289 ... 4289. proyumov prothumos proth'-oo-mos; from 4253 and 2372; forward in spirit, i.e. predisposed; neuter (as noun) alacrity:--ready, willing. ...

G4561 ... 4561. sarx sarx sarx; probably from the base of 4563; flesh (as stripped of the skin), i.e. (strictly) the meat of an animal (as food), or (by extension) the body (as opposed to the soul [or spirit], or as the symbol of what is external, or as the means of kindred), or (by implication) human nature (with its frailties [physically or morally] and passions), or (specifically) a human being (as such):--carnal(-ly, +- ly minded), flesh([-ly]). ...

G4636 ... 4636. skhnov skenos skay'-nos ; from 4633; a hut or temporary residence, i.e. (figuratively) the human body (as the abode of the spirit):--tabernacle. ...

G5326 ... 5326. fantasma phantasma fan'-tas-mah ; from 5324; (properly concrete) a (mere) show ("phantasm"), i.e. spectre:--spirit. ...

G5469 ... 5469. calinov chalinos khal-ee-nos'; from 5465; a curb or head-stall (as curbing the spirit):--bit, bridle. ...

G5545 ... 5545. crisma chrisma khris'-mah; from 5548; an unguent or smearing, i.e. (figuratively) the special endowment ("chrism") of the Holy Spirit:--anointing, unction. ... G5590 ... 5590. quch psuche psoo-khay'; from 5594; breath, i.e. (by implication) spirit, abstractly or concretely (the animal sentient principle only; thus distinguished on the one hand from 4151, which is the rational and immortal soul; and on the other from 2222, which is mere vitality, even of plants: these terms thus exactly correspond respectively to the Hebrew 05315, 07307 and 02416):--heart (+- ily), life, mind, soul, + us, + you. ...

New Testament Greek: Holy Spirit

```
the Holy Spirit unto a new life, identifies publicly with the ...
G908 ...
G1320 ...
              the Holy Spirit ...
            2d) of the Holy Spirit, descending and operating in one ...
G1904 ...
G1936 ... the Holy Spirit (at the administration of baptism and the ...
              2a1) of the Holy Spirit, in his inspiration and impulse ...
G1968 ...
G1982 ... Used of the Holy Spirit exerting creative energy upon the womb of ...
G2304 ... 2b) Holy Spirit ...
G2316 ...
            2c) Holy Spirit, the third person in the trinity ...
G2538 ...
            1a) in the new state of life in which the Holy Spirit places us so ...
G3438 ... 3) metaph. of the God the Holy Spirit indwelling believers ...
G3661 ... concert master, so the Holy Spirit blends together the lives of ...
               1c1) of the Holy Spirit destined to take the place of Christ ...
G3875 ...
G4151 ... 1) the third person of the triune God, the Holy Spirit, coequal, ...
       personality and character (the Holy Spirit) ...
G4152 ... 3a) of God the Holy Spirit ...
G4153 ... 1) spiritually: i.e. by the aid of the Holy Spirit ...
G4239 ... This is a work of the Holy Spirit, not of the human will. (#Ga 5:23) ...
G4396 ...
                  moved by the Holy Spirit to speak, having power to ...
G4690 ...
               2c1) of divine energy of the Holy Spirit operating within the ...
           their souls by the Holy Spirit ...
G5486 ...
G5548 ...
            1b) enduing Christians with the gifts of the Holy Spirit ...
```

4151 πνευμα pneuma (pnyoo'-mah)

from 4154; TDNT-6:332,876; n n

- AV-Spirit 111, (Holy) Ghost 89, Spirit (of God) 13, Spirit (of the Lord) 5, (My) Spirit 3, Spirit (of truth) 3, Spirit (of Christ) 2, human (spirit) 49, (evil) spirit 47, spirit (general) 26, spirit 8, (Jesus' own) spirit 6, (Jesus' own) ghost 2, misc 21; 385
- 1) the third person of the triune God, the Holy Spirit, coequal, coeternal with the Father and the Son
 - 1a) sometimes referred to in a way which emphasises his personality and character (the Holy Spirit)
 - 1b) sometimes referred to in a way which emphasises his work and power (the Spirit of Truth)
 - 1c) never referred to as a depersonalised force
- 2) the spirit, i.e. the vital principal by which the body is animated
 - 2a) the rational spirit, the power by which the human being feels, thinks, decides
 - 2b) the soul
- 3) a spirit, i.e. a simple essence, devoid of all or at least all grosser matter, and possessed of the power of knowing, desiring, deciding, and acting
 - 3a) a life giving spirit
 - 3b) a human soul that has left the body
 - 3c) a spirit higher than man but lower than God, i.e. an angel
 - 3c1) used of demons, or evil spirits, who were conceived as inhabiting the bodies of men
 - 3c2) the spiritual nature of Christ, higher than the highest angels and equal to God, the divine nature of Christ
- 4) the disposition or influence which fills and governs the soul of any one
 - 4a) the efficient source of any power, affection, emotion, desire, etc.
- 5) a movement of air (a gentle blast)
 - 5a) of the wind, hence the wind itself
 - 5b) breath of nostrils or mouth

For Synonyms see entry 5923

- Mt 1:18 Now the birth of Jesus Christ was on this wise: When as his mother Mary was espoused to Joseph, before they came together, she was found with child of the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Mt 1:20 But while he thought on these things, behold, the angel of the Lord appeared unto him in a dream, saying, Joseph, thou son of David, fear not to take unto thee Mary thy wife: for that which is conceived in her is of the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Mt 3:11 I indeed baptize you with water unto repentance: but he that cometh after me is mightier than I, whose shoes I am not worthy to bear: he shall baptize you with the Holy Ghost <4151>, and with fire:
- Mt 3:16 And Jesus, when he was baptized, went up straightway out of the water: and, lo, the heavens were opened unto him, and he saw the Spirit <4151> of God descending like a dove, and lighting upon him:
- Mt 4:1 Then was Jesus led up of the Spirit <4151> into the wilderness to be tempted of the devil.
- Mt 5:3 Blessed *are* the poor in spirit <4151>: for theirs is the kingdom of heaven.

- Mt 8:16 When the even was come, they brought unto him many that were possessed with devils: and he cast out the spirits <4151> with his word, and healed all that were sick:
- Mt 10:1 And when he had called unto *him* his twelve disciples, he gave them power *against* unclean spirits <4151>, to cast them out, and to heal all manner of sickness and all manner of disease.
- Mt 10:20 For it is not ye that speak, but the Spirit <4151> of your Father which speaketh in you.
- Mt 12:18 Behold my servant, whom I have chosen; my beloved, in whom my soul is well pleased: I will put my spirit <4151> upon him, and he shall shew judgment to the Gentiles.
- Mt 12:28 But if I cast out devils by the Spirit <4151> of God, then the kingdom of God is come unto you.
- Mt 12:31 Wherefore I say unto you, All manner of sin and blasphemy shall be forgiven unto men: but the blasphemy *against* the *Holy* Ghost <4151> shall not be forgiven unto men.
- Mt 12:32 And whosoever speaketh a word against the Son of man, it shall be forgiven him: but whosoever speaketh against the Holy Ghost <4151>, it shall not be forgiven him, neither in this world, neither in the *world* to come.
- Mt 12:43 When the unclean spirit <4151> is gone out of a man, he walketh through dry places, seeking rest, and findeth none.
- Mt 12:45 Then goeth he, and taketh with himself seven other spirits <4151> more wicked than himself, and they enter in and dwell there: and the last *state* of that man is worse than the first. Even so shall it be also unto this wicked generation.
- Mt 22:43 He saith unto them, How then doth David in spirit <4151> call him Lord, saying,
- Mt 26:41 Watch and pray, that ye enter not into temptation: the spirit <4151> indeed *is* willing, but the flesh *is* weak.
- Mt 27:50 Jesus, when he had cried again with a loud voice, yielded up the ghost <4151>.
- Mt 28:19 Go ye therefore, and teach all nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Ghost <4151>:
- Mr 1:8 I indeed have baptized you with water: but he shall baptize you with the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Mr 1:10 And straightway coming up out of the water, he saw the heavens opened, and the Spirit <4151> like a dove descending upon him:
- Mr 1:12 And immediately the Spirit <4151> driveth him into the wilderness.
- Mr 1:23 And there was in their synagogue a man with an unclean spirit <4151>; and he cried out.
- Mr 1:26 And when the unclean spirit <4151> had torn him, and cried with a loud voice, he came out of him.
- Mr 1:27 And they were all amazed, insomuch that they questioned among themselves, saying, What thing is this? what new doctrine *is* this? for with authority commandeth he even the unclean spirits <4151>, and they do obey him.

- Mr 2:8 And immediately when Jesus perceived in his spirit <4151> that they so reasoned within themselves, he said unto them, Why reason ye these things in your hearts?
- Mr 3:11 And unclean spirits <4151>, when they saw him, fell down before him, and cried, saying, Thou art the Son of God.
- Mr 3:29 But he that shall blaspheme against the Holy Ghost <4151> hath never forgiveness, but is in danger of eternal damnation:
- Mr 3:30 Because they said, He hath an unclean spirit <4151>.
- Mr 5:2 And when he was come out of the ship, immediately there met him out of the tombs a man with an unclean spirit <4151>,
- Mr 5:8 For he said unto him, Come out of the man, *thou* unclean spirit <4151>.
- Mr 5:13 And forthwith Jesus gave them leave. And the unclean spirits <4151> went out, and entered into the swine: and the herd ran violently down a steep place into the sea, (they were about two thousand;) and were choked in the sea.
- Mr 6:7 And he called *unto him* the twelve, and began to send them forth by two and two; and gave them power over unclean spirits <4151>;
- Mr 7:25 For a *certain* woman, whose young daughter had an unclean spirit <4151>, heard of him, and came and fell at his feet:
- Mr 8:12 And he sighed deeply in his spirit <4151>, and saith, Why doth this generation seek after a sign? verily I say unto you, There shall no sign be given unto this generation.
- Mr 9:17 And one of the multitude answered and said, Master, I have brought unto thee my son, which hath a dumb spirit <4151>;
- Mr 9:20 And they brought him unto him: and when he saw him, straightway the spirit <4151> tare him; and he fell on the ground, and wallowed foaming.
- Mr 9:25 When Jesus saw that the people came running together, he rebuked the foul spirit <4151>, saying unto him, *Thou* dumb and deaf spirit <4151>, I charge thee, come out of him, and enter no more into him.
- Mr 12:36 For David himself said by the Holy Ghost <4151>, The LORD said to my Lord, Sit thou on my right hand, till I make thine enemies thy footstool.
- Mr 13:11 But when they shall lead *you*, and deliver you up, take no thought beforehand what ye shall speak, neither do ye premeditate: but whatsoever shall be given you in that hour, that speak ye: for it is not ye that speak, but the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Mr 14:38 Watch ye and pray, lest ye enter into temptation. The spirit <4151> truly *is* ready, but the flesh *is* weak.
- Lu 1:15 For he shall be great in the sight of the Lord, and shall drink neither wine nor strong drink; and he shall be filled with the Holy Ghost <4151>, even from his mother's womb.
- Lu 1:17 And he shall go before him in the spirit <4151> and power of Elias, to turn the hearts of the fathers to the children, and the disobedient to the wisdom of the just; to make ready a people prepared for the Lord.
- Lu 1:35 And the angel answered and said unto her, The Holy Ghost <4151> shall come upon thee, and the power of the Highest shall overshadow thee: therefore also that holy thing which shall be born of thee shall be called the Son of God.
- Lu 1:41 And it came to pass, that, when Elisabeth heard the salutation of Mary, the babe leaped in her womb; and Elisabeth was filled with the Holy Ghost <4151>:

- Lu 1:47 And my spirit <4151> hath rejoiced in God my Saviour.
- Lu 1:67 And his father Zacharias was filled with the Holy Ghost <4151>, and prophesied, saying,
- Lu 1:80 And the child grew, and waxed strong in spirit <4151>, and was in the deserts till the day of his shewing unto Israel.
- Lu 2:25 And, behold, there was a man in Jerusalem, whose name *was* Simeon; and the same man *was* just and devout, waiting for the consolation of Israel: and the Holy Ghost <4151> was upon him.
- Lu 2:26 And it was revealed unto him by the Holy Ghost <4151>, that he should not see death, before he had seen the Lord's Christ.
- Lu 2:27 And he came by the Spirit <4151> into the temple: and when the parents brought in the child Jesus, to do for him after the custom of the law,
- Lu 2:40 And the child grew, and waxed strong in spirit <4151>, filled with wisdom: and the grace of God was upon him.
- Lu 3:16 John answered, saying unto *them* all, I indeed baptize you with water; but one mightier than I cometh, the latchet of whose shoes I am not worthy to unloose: he shall baptize you with the Holy Ghost <4151> and with fire:
- Lu 3:22 And the Holy Ghost <4151> descended in a bodily shape like a dove upon him, and a voice came from heaven, which said, Thou art my beloved Son; in thee I am well pleased.
- Lu 4:1 And Jesus being full of the Holy Ghost <4151> returned from Jordan, and was led by the Spirit <4151> into the wilderness,
- Lu 4:14 And Jesus returned in the power of the Spirit <4151> into Galilee: and there went out a fame of him through all the region round about.
- Lu 4:18 The Spirit <4151> of the Lord *is* upon me, because he hath anointed me to preach the gospel to the poor; he hath sent me to heal the brokenhearted, to preach deliverance to the captives, and recovering of sight to the blind, to set at liberty them that are bruised,
- Lu 4:33 And in the synagogue there was a man, which had a spirit <4151> of an unclean devil, and cried out with a loud voice,
- Lu 4:36 And they were all amazed, and spake among themselves, saying, What a word *is* this! for with authority and power he commandeth the unclean spirits <4151>, and they come out.
- Lu 6:18 And they that were vexed with unclean spirits <4151>: and they were healed.
- Lu 7:21 And in that same hour he cured many of *their* infirmities and plagues, and of evil spirits <4151>; and unto many *that were* blind he gave sight.
- Lu 8:2 And certain women, which had been healed of evil spirits <4151> and infirmities, Mary called Magdalene, out of whom went seven devils,
- Lu 8:29 (For he had commanded the unclean spirit <4151> to come out of the man. For oftentimes it had caught him: and he was kept bound with chains and in fetters; and he brake the bands, and was driven of the devil into the wilderness.)
- Lu 8:55 And her spirit <4151> came again, and she arose straightway: and he commanded to give her meat.
- Lu 9:39 And, lo, a spirit <4151> taketh him, and he suddenly crieth out; and it teareth him that he foameth again, and bruising him hardly departeth from him.

- Lu 9:42 And as he was yet a coming, the devil threw him down, and tare *him*. And Jesus rebuked the unclean spirit <4151>, and healed the child, and delivered him again to his father.
- Lu 9:55 But he turned, and rebuked them, and said, Ye know not what manner of spirit <4151> ye are of.
- Lu 10:20 Notwithstanding in this rejoice not, that the spirits <4151> are subject unto you; but rather rejoice, because your names are written in heaven.
- Lu 10:21 In that hour Jesus rejoiced in spirit <4151>, and said, I thank thee, O Father, Lord of heaven and earth, that thou hast hid these things from the wise and prudent, and hast revealed them unto babes: even so, Father; for so it seemed good in thy sight.
- Lu 11:13 If ye then, being evil, know how to give good gifts unto your children: how much more shall *your* heavenly Father give the Holy Spirit <4151> to them that ask him?
- Lu 11:24 When the unclean spirit <4151> is gone out of a man, he walketh through dry places, seeking rest; and finding none, he saith, I will return unto my house whence I came out.
- Lu 11:26 Then goeth he, and taketh *to him* seven other spirits <4151> more wicked than himself; and they enter in, and dwell there: and the last *state* of that man is worse than the first.
- Lu 12:10 And whosoever shall speak a word against the Son of man, it shall be forgiven him: but unto him that blasphemeth against the Holy Ghost <4151> it shall not be forgiven.
- Lu 12:12 For the Holy Ghost <4151> shall teach you in the same hour what ye ought to say.
- Lu 13:11 And, behold, there was a woman which had a spirit <4151> of infirmity eighteen years, and was bowed together, and could in no wise lift up *herself*.
- Lu 23:46 And when Jesus had cried with a loud voice, he said, Father, into thy hands I commend my spirit <4151>: and having said thus, he gave up the ghost.
- Lu 24:37 But they were terrified and affrighted, and supposed that they had seen a spirit <4151>.
- Lu 24:39 Behold my hands and my feet, that it is I myself: handle me, and see; for a spirit <4151> hath not flesh and bones, as ye see me have.
- Joh 1:32 And John bare record, saying, I saw the Spirit <4151> descending from heaven like a dove, and it abode upon him.
- Joh 1:33 And I knew him not: but he that sent me to baptize with water, the same said unto me, Upon whom thou shalt see the Spirit <4151> descending, and remaining on him, the same is he which baptizeth with the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Joh 3:5 Jesus answered, Verily, verily, I say unto thee, Except a man be born of water and *of* the Spirit <4151>, he cannot enter into the kingdom of God.
- Joh 3:6 That which is born of the flesh is flesh; and that which is born of the Spirit <4151> is spirit <4151>.
- Joh 3:8 The wind <4151> bloweth where it listeth, and thou hearest the sound thereof, but canst not tell whence it cometh, and whither it goeth: so is every one that is born of the Spirit <4151>.

- Joh 3:34 For he whom God hath sent speaketh the words of God: for God giveth not the Spirit <4151> by measure *unto him*.
- Joh 4:23 But the hour cometh, and now is, when the true worshippers shall worship the Father in spirit <4151> and in truth: for the Father seeketh such to worship him.
- Joh 4:24 God *is* a Spirit <4151>: and they that worship him must worship *him* in spirit <4151> and in truth.
- Joh 6:63 It is the spirit <4151> that quickeneth; the flesh profiteth nothing: the words that I speak unto you, *they* are spirit <4151>, and *they* are life.
- Joh 7:39 (But this spake he of the Spirit <4151>, which they that believe on him should receive: for the Holy Ghost <4151> was not yet *given*; because that Jesus was not yet glorified.)
- Joh 11:33 When Jesus therefore saw her weeping, and the Jews also weeping which came with her, he groaned in the spirit <4151>, and was troubled,
- Joh 13:21 When Jesus had thus said, he was troubled in spirit <4151>, and testified, and said, Verily, verily, I say unto you, that one of you shall betray me.
- Joh 14:17 *Even* the Spirit <4151> of truth; whom the world cannot receive, because it seeth him not, neither knoweth him: but ye know him; for he dwelleth with you, and shall be in you.
- Joh 14:26 But the Comforter, *which is* the Holy Ghost <a href="41
- Joh 15:26 But when the Comforter is come, whom I will send unto you from the Father, even the Spirit <4151> of truth, which proceedeth from the Father, he shall testify of me:
- Joh 16:13 Howbeit when he, the Spirit <4151> of truth, is come, he will guide you into all truth: for he shall not speak of himself; but whatsoever he shall hear, *that* shall he speak: and he will shew you things to come.
- Joh 19:30 When Jesus therefore had received the vinegar, he said, It is finished: and he bowed his head, and gave up the ghost <4151>.
- Joh 20:22 And when he had said this, he breathed on *them*, and saith unto them, Receive ye the Holy Ghost <4151>:
- Ac 1:2 Until the day in which he was taken up, after that he through the Holy Ghost <4151> had given commandments unto the apostles whom he had chosen:
- Ac 1:5 For John truly baptized with water; but ye shall be baptized with the Holy Ghost <4151> not many days hence.
- Ac 1:8 But ye shall receive power, after that the Holy Ghost <4151> is come upon you: and ye shall be witnesses unto me both in Jerusalem, and in all Judaea, and in Samaria, and unto the uttermost part of the earth.
- Ac 1:16 Men *and* brethren, this scripture must needs have been fulfilled, which the Holy Ghost <4151> by the mouth of David spake before concerning Judas, which was guide to them that took Jesus.
- Ac 2:4 And they were all filled with the Holy Ghost <4151>, and began to speak with other tongues, as the Spirit <4151> gave them utterance.
- Ac 2:17 And it shall come to pass in the last days, saith God, I will pour out of my Spirit <4151> upon all flesh: and your sons and your daughters shall prophesy, and your young men shall see visions, and your old men shall dream dreams:

- Ac 2:18 And on my servants and on my handmaidens I will pour out in those days of my Spirit <4151>; and they shall prophesy:
- Ac 2:33 Therefore being by the right hand of God exalted, and having received of the Father the promise of the Holy Ghost <4151>, he hath shed forth this, which ye now see and hear.
- Ac 2:38 Then Peter said unto them, Repent, and be baptized every one of you in the name of Jesus Christ for the remission of sins, and ye shall receive the gift of the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ac 4:8 Then Peter, filled with the Holy Ghost <4151>, said unto them, Ye rulers of the people, and elders of Israel,
- Ac 4:31 And when they had prayed, the place was shaken where they were assembled together; and they were all filled with the Holy Ghost <4151>, and they spake the word of God with boldness.
- Ac 5:3 But Peter said, Ananias, why hath Satan filled thine heart to lie to the Holy Ghost <4151>, and to keep back *part* of the price of the land?
- Ac 5:9 Then Peter said unto her, How is it that ye have agreed together to tempt the Spirit <4151> of the Lord? behold, the feet of them which have buried thy husband are at the door, and shall carry thee out.
- Ac 5:16 There came also a multitude *out* of the cities round about unto Jerusalem, bringing sick folks, and them which were vexed with unclean spirits <4151: and they were healed every one.
- Ac 5:32 And we are his witnesses of these things; and *so is* also the Holy Ghost <4151>, whom God hath given to them that obey him.
- Ac 6:3 Wherefore, brethren, look ye out among you seven men of honest report, full of the Holy Ghost <4151> and wisdom, whom we may appoint over this business.
- Ac 6:5 And the saying pleased the whole multitude: and they chose Stephen, a man full of faith and of the Holy Ghost <4151>, and Philip, and Prochorus, and Nicanor, and Timon, and Parmenas, and Nicolas a proselyte of Antioch:
- Ac 6:10 And they were not able to resist the wisdom and the spirit <4151> by which he spake.
- Ac 7:51 Ye stiffnecked and uncircumcised in heart and ears, ye do always resist the Holy Ghost <4151>: as your fathers *did*, so *do* ye.
- Ac 7:55 But he, being full of the Holy Ghost <4151>, looked up stedfastly into heaven, and saw the glory of God, and Jesus standing on the right hand of God,
- Ac 7:59 And they stoned Stephen, calling upon *God*, and saying, Lord Jesus, receive my spirit <4151>.
- Ac 8:7 For unclean spirits <4151>, crying with loud voice, came out of many that were possessed *with them*: and many taken with palsies, and that were lame, were healed.
- Ac 8:15 Who, when they were come down, prayed for them, that they might receive the Holy Ghost <4151>:
- Ac 8:17 Then laid they *their* hands on them, and they received the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ac 8:18 And when Simon saw that through laying on of the apostles' hands the Holy Ghost <4151> was given, he offered them money,
- Ac 8:19 Saying, Give me also this power, that on whomsoever I lay hands, he may receive the Holy Ghost <4151>.

- Ac 8:29 Then the Spirit <4151> said unto Philip, Go near, and join thyself to this chariot.
- Ac 8:39 And when they were come up out of the water, the Spirit <4151> of the Lord caught away Philip, that the eunuch saw him no more: and he went on his way rejoicing.
- Ac 9:17 And Ananias went his way, and entered into the house; and putting his hands on him said, Brother Saul, the Lord, *even* Jesus, that appeared unto thee in the way as thou camest, hath sent me, that thou mightest receive thy sight, and be filled with the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ac 9:31 Then had the churches rest throughout all Judaea and Galilee and Samaria, and were edified; and walking in the fear of the Lord, and in the comfort of the Holy Ghost <4151>, were multiplied.
- Ac 10:19 While Peter thought on the vision, the Spirit <4151> said unto him, Behold, three men seek thee.
- Ac 10:38 How God anointed Jesus of Nazareth with the Holy Ghost <4151> and with power: who went about doing good, and healing all that were oppressed of the devil; for God was with him.
- Ac 10:44 While Peter yet spake these words, the Holy Ghost <4151> fell on all them which heard the word.
- Ac 10:45 And they of the circumcision which believed were astonished, as many as came with Peter, because that on the Gentiles also was poured out the gift of the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ac 10:47 Can any man forbid water, that these should not be baptized, which have received the Holy Ghost <4151> as well as we?
- Ac 11:12 And the Spirit <4151> bade me go with them, nothing doubting. Moreover these six brethren accompanied me, and we entered into the man's house:
- Ac 11:15 And as I began to speak, the Holy Ghost <4151> fell on them, as on us at the beginning.
- Ac 11:16 Then remembered I the word of the Lord, how that he said, John indeed baptized with water; but ye shall be baptized with the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ac 11:24 For he was a good man, and full of the Holy Ghost <4151> and of faith: and much people was added unto the Lord.
- Ac 11:28 And there stood up one of them named Agabus, and signified by the Spirit <4151 that there should be great dearth throughout all the world: which came to pass in the days of Claudius Caesar.
- Ac 13:2 As they ministered to the Lord, and fasted, the Holy Ghost <4151> said, Separate me Barnabas and Saul for the work whereunto I have called them.
- Ac 13:4 So they, being sent forth by the Holy Ghost <4151>, departed unto Seleucia; and from thence they sailed to Cyprus.
- Ac 13:9 Then Saul, (who also *is called* Paul,) filled with the Holy Ghost <4151>, set his eyes on him,
- Ac 13:52 And the disciples were filled with joy, and with the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ac 15:8 And God, which knoweth the hearts, bare them witness, giving them the Holy Ghost <4151>, even as *he did* unto us;
- Ac 15:28 For it seemed good to the Holy Ghost <4151>, and to us, to lay upon you no greater burden than these necessary things;

- Ac 16:6 Now when they had gone throughout Phrygia and the region of Galatia, and were forbidden of the Holy Ghost <4151> to preach the word in Asia,
- Ac 16:7 After they were come to Mysia, they assayed to go into Bithynia: but the Spirit <4151> suffered them not.
- Ac 16:16 And it came to pass, as we went to prayer, a certain damsel possessed with a spirit <4151> of divination met us, which brought her masters much gain by soothsaying:
- Ac 16:18 And this did she many days. But Paul, being grieved, turned and said to the spirit <4151>, I command thee in the name of Jesus Christ to come out of her. And he came out the same hour.
- Ac 17:16 Now while Paul waited for them at Athens, his spirit <4151> was stirred in him, when he saw the city wholly given to idolatry.
- Ac 18:5 And when Silas and Timotheus were come from Macedonia, Paul was pressed in the spirit <4151>, and testified to the Jews *that* Jesus *was* Christ.
- Ac 18:25 This man was instructed in the way of the Lord; and being fervent in the spirit <4151>, he spake and taught diligently the things of the Lord, knowing only the baptism of John.
- Ac 19:2 He said unto them, Have ye received the Holy Ghost <4151> since ye believed? And they said unto him, We have not so much as heard whether there be any Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ac 19:6 And when Paul had laid *his* hands upon them, the Holy Ghost <4151> came on them; and they spake with tongues, and prophesied.
- Ac 19:12 So that from his body were brought unto the sick handkerchiefs or aprons, and the diseases departed from them, and the evil spirits <4151> went out of them.
- Ac 19:13 Then certain of the vagabond Jews, exorcists, took upon them to call over them which had evil spirits <4151> the name of the Lord Jesus, saying, We adjure you by Jesus whom Paul preacheth.
- Ac 19:15 And the evil spirit <4151> answered and said, Jesus I know, and Paul I know; but who are ye?
- Ac 19:16 And the man in whom the evil spirit <4151> was leaped on them, and overcame them, and prevailed against them, so that they fled out of that house naked and wounded.
- Ac 19:21 After these things were ended, Paul purposed in the spirit <4151>, when he had passed through Macedonia and Achaia, to go to Jerusalem, saying, After I have been there, I must also see Rome.
- Ac 20:22 And now, behold, I go bound in the spirit
- Ac 20:23 Save that the Holy Ghost <4151> witnesseth in every city, saying that bonds and afflictions abide me.
- Ac 20:28 Take heed therefore unto yourselves, and to all the flock, over the which the Holy Ghost <4151> hath made you overseers, to feed the church of God, which he hath purchased with his own blood.
- Ac 21:4 And finding disciples, we tarried there seven days: who said to Paul through the Spirit <4151>, that he should not go up to Jerusalem.
- Ac 21:11 And when he was come unto us, he took Paul's girdle, and bound his own hands and feet, and said, Thus saith the Holy Ghost <4151>, So shall the Jews at

- Jerusalem bind the man that owneth this girdle, and shall deliver *him* into the hands of the Gentiles.
- Ac 23:8 For the Sadducees say that there is no resurrection, neither angel, nor spirit <4151: but the Pharisees confess both.
- Ac 23:9 And there arose a great cry: and the scribes *that were* of the Pharisees' part arose, and strove, saying, We find no evil in this man: but if a spirit <4151> or an angel hath spoken to him, let us not fight against God.
- Ac 28:25 And when they agreed not among themselves, they departed, after that Paul had spoken one word, Well spake the Holy Ghost <4151> by Esaias the prophet unto our fathers,
- Ro 1:4 And declared *to be* the Son of God with power, according to the spirit <4151> of holiness, by the resurrection from the dead:
- Ro 1:9 For God is my witness, whom I serve with my spirit <4151> in the gospel of his Son, that without ceasing I make mention of you always in my prayers;
- Ro 2:29 But he *is* a Jew, which is one inwardly; and circumcision *is that* of the heart, in the spirit <4151>, and not in the letter; whose praise *is* not of men, but of God.
- Ro 5:5 And hope maketh not ashamed; because the love of God is shed abroad in our hearts by the Holy Ghost <4151> which is given unto us.
- Ro 7:6 But now we are delivered from the law, that being dead wherein we were held; that we should serve in newness of spirit <4151>, and not *in* the oldness of the letter.
- Ro 8:1 *There is* therefore now no condemnation to them which are in Christ Jesus, who walk not after the flesh, but after the Spirit <4151>.
- Ro 8:2 For the law of the Spirit <4151> of life in Christ Jesus hath made me free from the law of sin and death.
- Ro 8:4 That the righteousness of the law might be fulfilled in us, who walk not after the flesh, but after the Spirit <4151>.
- Ro 8:5 For they that are after the flesh do mind the things of the flesh; but they that are after the Spirit <4151> the things of the Spirit <4151>.
- Ro 8:6 For to be carnally minded *is* death; but to be spiritually <4151> minded *is* life and peace.
- Ro 8:9 But ye are not in the flesh, but in the Spirit <4151>, if so be that the Spirit <4151> of God dwell in you. Now if any man have not the Spirit <4151> of Christ, he is none of his.
- Ro 8:10 And if Christ *be* in you, the body *is* dead because of sin; but the Spirit <4151> *is* life because of righteousness.
- Ro 8:11 But if the Spirit <4151> of him that raised up Jesus from the dead dwell in you, he that raised up Christ from the dead shall also quicken your mortal bodies by his Spirit <4151> that dwelleth in you.
- Ro 8:13 For if ye live after the flesh, ye shall die: but if ye through the Spirit <4151> do mortify the deeds of the body, ye shall live.
- Ro 8:14 For as many as are led by the Spirit <4151> of God, they are the sons of God.
- Ro 8:15 For ye have not received the spirit <a href
- Ro 8:16 The Spirit <4151> itself beareth witness with our spirit <4151>, that we are the children of God:

- Ro 8:23 And not only *they*, but ourselves also, which have the firstfruits of the Spirit <4151>, even we ourselves groan within ourselves, waiting for the adoption, *to wit*, the redemption of our body.
- Ro 8:26 Likewise the Spirit <4151> also helpeth our infirmities: for we know not what we should pray for as we ought: but the Spirit <4151> itself maketh intercession for us with groanings which cannot be uttered.
- Ro 8:27 And he that searcheth the hearts knoweth what *is* the mind of the Spirit <4151>, because he maketh intercession for the saints according to *the will of* God.
- Ro 9:1 I say the truth in Christ, I lie not, my conscience also bearing me witness in the Holy Ghost <4151>,
- Ro 11:8 (According as it is written, God hath given them the spirit <4151> of slumber, eyes that they should not see, and ears that they should not hear;) unto this day.
- Ro 12:11 Not slothful in business; fervent in spirit <4151>; serving the Lord;
- Ro 14:17 For the kingdom of God is not meat and drink; but righteousness, and peace, and joy in the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ro 15:13 Now the God of hope fill you with all joy and peace in believing, that ye may abound in hope, through the power of the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ro 15:16 That I should be the minister of Jesus Christ to the Gentiles, ministering the gospel of God, that the offering up of the Gentiles might be acceptable, being sanctified by the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- Ro 15:19 Through mighty signs and wonders, by the power of the Spirit <4151> of God; so that from Jerusalem, and round about unto Illyricum, I have fully preached the gospel of Christ.
- Ro 15:30 Now I beseech you, brethren, for the Lord Jesus Christ's sake, and for the love of the Spirit <4151>, that ye strive together with me in *your* prayers to God for me;
- 1Co 2:4 And my speech and my preaching was not with enticing words of man's wisdom, but in demonstration of the Spirit <4151> and of power:
- 1Co 2:10 But God hath revealed *them* unto us by his Spirit <4151> searcheth all things, yea, the deep things of God.
- 1Co 2:11 For what man knoweth the things of a man, save the spirit <4151> of man which is in him? even so the things of God knoweth no man, but the Spirit <4151> of God.
- 1Co 2:12 Now we have received, not the spirit <4151 of the world, but the spirit <4151 which is of God; that we might know the things that are freely given to us of God.
- 1Co 2:13 Which things also we speak, not in the words which man's wisdom teacheth, but which the Holy Ghost <4151> teacheth; comparing spiritual things with spiritual.
- 1Co 2:14 But the natural man receiveth not the things of the Spirit <4151> of God: for they are foolishness unto him: neither can he know *them*, because they are spiritually discerned.
- 1Co 3:16 Know ye not that ye are the temple of God, and *that* the Spirit <4151> of God dwelleth in you?
- 1Co 4:21 What will ye? shall I come unto you with a rod, or in love, and *in* the spirit <4151> of meekness?

- 1Co 5:3 For I verily, as absent in body, but present in spirit <4151>, have judged already, as though I were present, *concerning* him that hath so done this deed,
- 1Co 5:4 In the name of our Lord Jesus Christ, when ye are gathered together, and my spirit <4151>, with the power of our Lord Jesus Christ,
- 1Co 5:5 To deliver such an one unto Satan for the destruction of the flesh, that the spirit <4151> may be saved in the day of the Lord Jesus.
- 1Co 6:11 And such were some of you: but ye are washed, but ye are sanctified, but ye are justified in the name of the Lord Jesus, and by the Spirit <4151> of our God.
- 1Co 6:17 But he that is joined unto the Lord is one spirit <4151>.
- 1Co 6:19 What? know ye not that your body is the temple of the Holy Ghost <4151> which is in you, which ye have of God, and ye are not your own?
- 1Co 6:20 For ye are bought with a price: therefore glorify God in your body, and in your spirit <4151>, which are God's.
- 1Co 7:34 There is difference *also* between a wife and a virgin. The unmarried woman careth for the things of the Lord, that she may be holy both in body and in spirit <4151: but she that is married careth for the things of the world, how she may please *her* husband.
- 1Co 7:40 But she is happier if she so abide, after my judgment: and I think also that I have the Spirit <4151> of God.
- 1Co 12:3 Wherefore I give you to understand, that no man speaking by the Spirit <4151> of God calleth Jesus accursed: and *that* no man can say that Jesus is the Lord, but by the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- 1Co 12:4 Now there are diversities of gifts, but the same Spirit <4151>.
- 1Co 12:7 But the manifestation of the Spirit <4151> is given to every man to profit withal.
- 1Co 12:8 For to one is given by the Spirit <4151> the word of wisdom; to another the word of knowledge by the same Spirit <4151>;
- 1Co 12:9 To another faith by the same Spirit <4151>; to another the gifts of healing by the same Spirit <4151>;
- 1Co 12:10 To another the working of miracles; to another prophecy; to another discerning of spirits <4151>; to another *divers* kinds of tongues; to another the interpretation of tongues:
- 1Co 12:11 But all these worketh that one and the selfsame Spirit <4151>, dividing to every man severally as he will.
- 1Co 12:13 For by one Spirit <4151> are we all baptized into one body, whether we be Jews or Gentiles, whether we be bond or free; and have been all made to drink into one Spirit <4151>.
- 1Co 14:2 For he that speaketh in an *unknown* tongue speaketh not unto men, but unto God: for no man understandeth *him*; howbeit in the spirit <4151> he speaketh mysteries.
- 1Co 14:12 Even so ye, forasmuch as ye are zealous of spiritual <4151> gifts, seek that ye may excel to the edifying of the church.
- 1Co 14:14 For if I pray in an *unknown* tongue, my spirit <4151> prayeth, but my understanding is unfruitful.

- 1Co 14:15 What is it then? I will pray with the spirit <4151>, and I will pray with the understanding also: I will sing with the spirit <4151>, and I will sing with the understanding also.
- 1Co 14:16 Else when thou shalt bless with the spirit <4151>, how shall he that occupieth the room of the unlearned say Amen at thy giving of thanks, seeing he understandeth not what thou sayest?
- 1Co 14:32 And the spirits <4151> of the prophets are subject to the prophets.
- 1Co 15:45 And so it is written, The first man Adam was made a living soul; the last Adam was made a quickening spirit <4151>.
- 1Co 16:18 For they have refreshed my spirit <4151> and yours: therefore acknowledge ye them that are such.
- 2Co 1:22 Who hath also sealed us, and given the earnest of the Spirit <4151> in our hearts.
- 2Co 2:13 I had no rest in my spirit <4151>, because I found not Titus my brother: but taking my leave of them, I went from thence into Macedonia.
- 2Co 3:3 Forasmuch as ye are manifestly declared to be the epistle of Christ ministered by us, written not with ink, but with the Spirit <4151> of the living God; not in tables of stone, but in fleshy tables of the heart.
- 2Co 3:6 Who also hath made us able ministers of the new testament; not of the letter, but of the spirit <4151>: for the letter killeth, but the spirit <4151> giveth life.
- 2Co 3:8 How shall not the ministration of the spirit <4151> be rather glorious?
- 2Co 3:17 Now the Lord is that Spirit <4151>: and where the Spirit <4151> of the Lord *is*, there *is* liberty.
- 2Co 3:18 But we all, with open face beholding as in a glass the glory of the Lord, are changed into the same image from glory to glory, *even* as by the Spirit <4151> of the Lord.
- 2Co 4:13 We having the same spirit <4151> of faith, according as it is written, I believed, and therefore have I spoken; we also believe, and therefore speak;
- 2Co 5:5 Now he that hath wrought us for the selfsame thing *is* God, who also hath given unto us the earnest of the Spirit <4151>.
- 2Co 6:6 By pureness, by knowledge, by longsuffering, by kindness, by the Holy Ghost <4151>, by love unfeigned,
- 2Co 7:1 Having therefore these promises, dearly beloved, let us cleanse ourselves from all filthiness of the flesh and spirit <4151>, perfecting holiness in the fear of God.
- 2Co 7:13 Therefore we were comforted in your comfort: yea, and exceedingly the more joyed we for the joy of Titus, because his spirit <4151> was refreshed by you all.
- 2Co 11:4 For if he that cometh preacheth another Jesus, whom we have not preached, or *if* ye receive another spirit <4151>, which ye have not received, or another gospel, which ye have not accepted, ye might well bear with *him*.
- 2Co 12:18 I desired Titus, and with *him* I sent a brother. Did Titus make a gain of you? walked we not in the same spirit <4151>? walked we not in the same steps?
- 2Co 13:14 The grace of the Lord Jesus Christ, and the love of God, and the communion of the Holy Ghost <4151>, be with you all. Amen. << The second epistle to the Corinthians was written from Philippi, a city of Macedonia, by Titus and Lucas.>>

- Ga 3:2 This only would I learn of you, Received ye the Spirit <4151> by the works of the law, or by the hearing of faith?
- Ga 3:3 Are ye so foolish? having begun in the Spirit <a href="4151
- Ga 3:5 He therefore that ministereth to you the Spirit <a href="41
- Ga 3:14 That the blessing of Abraham might come on the Gentiles through Jesus Christ; that we might receive the promise of the Spirit <4151> through faith.
- Ga 4:6 And because ye are sons, God hath sent forth the Spirit <4151> of his Son into your hearts, crying, Abba, Father.
- Ga 4:29 But as then he that was born after the flesh persecuted him *that was born* after the Spirit <4151>, even so *it is* now.
- Ga 5:5 For we through the Spirit <4151> wait for the hope of righteousness by faith.
- Ga 5:16 *This* I say then, Walk in the Spirit <4151>, and ye shall not fulfil the lust of the flesh.
- Ga 5:17 For the flesh lusteth against the Spirit <4151>, and the Spirit <4151> against the flesh: and these are contrary the one to the other: so that ye cannot do the things that ye would.
- Ga 5:18 But if ye be led of the Spirit <4151>, ye are not under the law.
- Ga 5:22 But the fruit of the Spirit <4151> is love, joy, peace, longsuffering, gentleness, goodness, faith,
- Ga 5:25 If we live in the Spirit <4151>, let us also walk in the Spirit <4151>.
- Ga 6:1 Brethren, if a man be overtaken in a fault, ye which are spiritual, restore such an one in the spirit <4151> of meekness; considering thyself, lest thou also be tempted.
- Ga 6:8 For he that soweth to his flesh shall of the flesh reap corruption; but he that soweth to the Spirit <4151> shall of the Spirit <4151> reap life everlasting.
- Ga 6:18 Brethren, the grace of our Lord Jesus Christ *be* with your spirit <4151>. Amen. << To the Galatians written from Rome.>>
- Eph 1:13 In whom ye also *trusted*, after that ye heard the word of truth, the gospel of your salvation: in whom also after that ye believed, ye were sealed with that holy Spirit <4151> of promise,
- Eph 1:17 That the God of our Lord Jesus Christ, the Father of glory, may give unto you the spirit <4151> of wisdom and revelation in the knowledge of him:
- Eph 2:2 Wherein in time past ye walked according to the course of this world, according to the prince of the power of the air, the spirit <4151> that now worketh in the children of disobedience:
- Eph 2:18 For through him we both have access by one Spirit <4151> unto the Father.
- Eph 2:22 In whom ye also are builded together for an habitation of God through the Spirit <4151>.
- Eph 3:5 Which in other ages was not made known unto the sons of men, as it is now revealed unto his holy apostles and prophets by the Spirit <4151>;
- Eph 3:16 That he would grant you, according to the riches of his glory, to be strengthened with might by his Spirit <4151> in the inner man;
- Eph 4:3 Endeavouring to keep the unity of the Spirit <4151> in the bond of peace.

- Eph 4:4 *There is* one body, and one Spirit <4151>, even as ye are called in one hope of your calling;
- Eph 4:23 And be renewed in the spirit <4151> of your mind;
- Eph 4:30 And grieve not the holy Spirit <4151> of God, whereby ye are sealed unto the day of redemption.
- Eph 5:9 (For the fruit of the Spirit <4151> is in all goodness and righteousness and truth;)
- Eph 5:18 And be not drunk with wine, wherein is excess; but be filled with the Spirit <4151>;
- Eph 6:17 And take the helmet of salvation, and the sword of the Spirit <4151>, which is the word of God:
- Eph 6:18 Praying always with all prayer and supplication in the Spirit <4151>, and watching thereunto with all perseverance and supplication for all saints;
- Php 1:19 For I know that this shall turn to my salvation through your prayer, and the supply of the Spirit <4151> of Jesus Christ,
- Php 1:27 Only let your conversation be as it becometh the gospel of Christ: that whether I come and see you, or else be absent, I may hear of your affairs, that ye stand fast in one spirit <4151>, with one mind striving together for the faith of the gospel;
- Php 2:1 If *there be* therefore any consolation in Christ, if any comfort of love, if any fellowship of the Spirit <4151>, if any bowels and mercies,
- Php 3:3 For we are the circumcision, which worship God in the spirit <4151>, and rejoice in Christ Jesus, and have no confidence in the flesh.
- Col 1:8 Who also declared unto us your love in the Spirit <4151>.
- Col 2:5 For though I be absent in the flesh, yet am I with you in the spirit <4151>, joying and beholding your order, and the stedfastness of your faith in Christ.
- 1Th 1:5 For our gospel came not unto you in word only, but also in power, and in the Holy Ghost <4151>, and in much assurance; as ye know what manner of men we were among you for your sake.
- 1Th 1:6 And ye became followers of us, and of the Lord, having received the word in much affliction, with joy of the Holy Ghost <4151>:
- 1Th 4:8 He therefore that despiseth, despiseth not man, but God, who hath also given unto us his holy Spirit <4151>.
- 1Th 5:19 Quench not the Spirit <4151>.
- 1Th 5:23 And the very God of peace sanctify you wholly; and *I pray God* your whole spirit <4151> and soul and body be preserved blameless unto the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ.
- 2Th 2:2 That ye be not soon shaken in mind, or be troubled, neither by spirit <4151>, nor by word, nor by letter as from us, as that the day of Christ is at hand.
- 2Th 2:8 And then shall that Wicked be revealed, whom the Lord shall consume with the spirit <4151> of his mouth, and shall destroy with the brightness of his coming:
- 2Th 2:13 But we are bound to give thanks alway to God for you, brethren beloved of the Lord, because God hath from the beginning chosen you to salvation through sanctification of the Spirit <4151> and belief of the truth:

- 1Ti 3:16 And without controversy great is the mystery of godliness: God was manifest in the flesh, justified in the Spirit <4151>, seen of angels, preached unto the Gentiles, believed on in the world, received up into glory.
- 1Ti 4:1 Now the Spirit <4151> speaketh expressly, that in the latter times some shall depart from the faith, giving heed to seducing spirits <4151>, and doctrines of devils;
- 1Ti 4:12 Let no man despise thy youth; but be thou an example of the believers, in word, in conversation, in charity, in spirit <4151>, in faith, in purity.
- 2Ti 1:7 For God hath not given us the spirit <4151> of fear; but of power, and of love, and of a sound mind.
- 2Ti 1:14 That good thing which was committed unto thee keep by the Holy Ghost <4151> which dwelleth in us.
- 2Ti 4:22 The Lord Jesus Christ *be* with thy spirit <a href="<4151"><4151. Grace *be* with you. Amen. <The second epistle unto Timotheus, ordained the first bishop of the church of the Ephesians, was written from Rome, when Paul was brought before Nero the second time.>>
- Tit 3:5 Not by works of righteousness which we have done, but according to his mercy he saved us, by the washing of regeneration, and renewing of the Holy Ghost <4151>;
- Phm 1:25 The grace of our Lord Jesus Christ be with your spirit <4151>. Amen. << Written from Rome to Philemon, by Onesimus a servant.>>
- Heb 1:7 And of the angels he saith, Who maketh his angels spirits <4151>, and his ministers a flame of fire.
- Heb 1:14 Are they not all ministering spirits <4151>, sent forth to minister for them who shall be heirs of salvation?
- Heb 2:4 God also bearing *them* witness, both with signs and wonders, and with divers miracles, and gifts of the Holy Ghost <4151>, according to his own will?
- Heb 3:7 Wherefore (as the Holy Ghost <4151> saith, To day if ye will hear his voice,
- Heb 4:12 For the word of God *is* quick, and powerful, and sharper than any twoedged sword, piercing even to the dividing asunder of soul and spirit <4151>, and of the joints and marrow, and *is* a discerner of the thoughts and intents of the heart.
- Heb 6:4 For *it is* impossible for those who were once enlightened, and have tasted of the heavenly gift, and were made partakers of the Holy Ghost <4151>,
- Heb 9:8 The Holy Ghost <4151> this signifying, that the way into the holiest of all was not yet made manifest, while as the first tabernacle was yet standing:
- Heb 9:14 How much more shall the blood of Christ, who through the eternal Spirit <4151> offered himself without spot to God, purge your conscience from dead works to serve the living God?
- Heb 10:15 *Whereof* the Holy Ghost <4151> also is a witness to us: for after that he had said before.
- Heb 10:29 Of how much sorer punishment, suppose ye, shall he be thought worthy, who hath trodden under foot the Son of God, and hath counted the blood of the covenant, wherewith he was sanctified, an unholy thing, and hath done despite unto the Spirit <4151> of grace?
- Heb 12:9 Furthermore we have had fathers of our flesh which corrected *us*, and we gave *them* reverence: shall we not much rather be in subjection unto the Father of spirits <4151>, and live?

- Heb 12:23 To the general assembly and church of the firstborn, which are written in heaven, and to God the Judge of all, and to the spirits <4151> of just men made perfect,
- Jas 2:26 For as the body without the spirit <4151> is dead, so faith without works is dead also.
- Jas 4:5 Do ye think that the scripture saith in vain, The spirit <4151> that dwelleth in us lusteth to envy?
- 1Pe 1:2 Elect according to the foreknowledge of God the Father, through sanctification of the Spirit <4151>, unto obedience and sprinkling of the blood of Jesus Christ: Grace unto you, and peace, be multiplied.
- 1Pe 1:11 Searching what, or what manner of time the Spirit <4151> of Christ which was in them did signify, when it testified beforehand the sufferings of Christ, and the glory that should follow.
- 1Pe 1:12 Unto whom it was revealed, that not unto themselves, but unto us they did minister the things, which are now reported unto you by them that have preached the gospel unto you with the Holy Ghost <4151> sent down from heaven; which things the angels desire to look into.
- 1Pe 1:22 Seeing ye have purified your souls in obeying the truth through the Spirit <4151> unto unfeigned love of the brethren, see that ye love one another with a pure heart fervently:
- 1Pe 3:4 But *let it be* the hidden man of the heart, in that which is not corruptible, *even the ornament* of a meek and quiet spirit <4151>, which is in the sight of God of great price.
- 1Pe 3:18 For Christ also hath once suffered for sins, the just for the unjust, that he might bring us to God, being put to death in the flesh, but quickened by the Spirit <4151>:
- 1Pe 3:19 By which also he went and preached unto the spirits <4151> in prison;
- 1Pe 4:6 For for this cause was the gospel preached also to them that are dead, that they might be judged according to men in the flesh, but live according to God in the spirit <4151>.
- 1Pe 4:14 If ye be reproached for the name of Christ, happy *are ye*; for the spirit <4151> of glory and of God resteth upon you: on their part he is evil spoken of, but on your part he is glorified.
- 2Pe 1:21 For the prophecy came not in old time by the will of man: but holy men of God spake *as they were* moved by the Holy Ghost <4151>.
- 1Jo 3:24 And he that keepeth his commandments dwelleth in him, and he in him. And hereby we know that he abideth in us, by the Spirit <4151> which he hath given us.
- 1Jo 4:1 Beloved, believe not every spirit <4151>, but try the spirits <4151> whether they are of God: because many false prophets are gone out into the world.
- 1Jo 4:2 Hereby know ye the Spirit <4151> of God: Every spirit <4151> that confesseth that Jesus Christ is come in the flesh is of God:
- 1Jo 4:3 And every spirit <4151> that confesseth not that Jesus Christ is come in the flesh is not of God: and this is that *spirit* of antichrist, whereof ye have heard that it should come; and even now already is it in the world.
- 1Jo 4:6 We are of God: he that knoweth God heareth us; he that is not of God heareth not us. Hereby know we the spirit <4151> of truth, and the spirit <4151> of error.

- 1Jo 4:13 Hereby know we that we dwell in him, and he in us, because he hath given us of his Spirit <4151>.
- 1Jo 5:6 This is he that came by water and blood, *even* Jesus Christ; not by water only, but by water and blood. And it is the Spirit <4151> that beareth witness, because the Spirit <4151> is truth.
- 1Jo 5:7 For there are three that bear record in heaven, the Father, the Word, and the Holy Ghost <4151>: and these three are one.
- 1Jo 5:8 And there are three that bear witness in earth, the Spirit <4151>, and the water, and the blood: and these three agree in one.
- Jude 1:19 These be they who separate themselves, sensual, having not the Spirit <4151.
- Jude 1:20 But ye, beloved, building up yourselves on your most holy faith, praying in the Holy Ghost <4151>,
- Re 1:4 John to the seven churches which are in Asia: Grace *be* unto you, and peace, from him which is, and which was, and which is to come; and from the seven Spirits <4151> which are before his throne;
- Re 1:10 I was in the Spirit <4151> on the Lord's day, and heard behind me a great voice, as of a trumpet,
- Re 2:7 He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit <4151> saith unto the churches; To him that overcometh will I give to eat of the tree of life, which is in the midst of the paradise of God.
- Re 2:11 He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit <4151> saith unto the churches; He that overcometh shall not be hurt of the second death.
- Re 2:17 He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit <4151> saith unto the churches; To him that overcometh will I give to eat of the hidden manna, and will give him a white stone, and in the stone a new name written, which no man knoweth saving he that receiveth *it*.
- Re 2:29 He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit <4151> saith unto the churches.
- Re 3:1 And unto the angel of the church in Sardis write; These things saith he that hath the seven Spirits <4151> of God, and the seven stars; I know thy works, that thou hast a name that thou livest, and art dead.
- Re 3:6 He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit <4151> saith unto the churches.
- Re 3:13 He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit <4151> saith unto the churches
- Re 3:22 He that hath an ear, let him hear what the Spirit <4151> saith unto the churches.
- Re 4:2 And immediately I was in the spirit <4151>: and, behold, a throne was set in heaven, and *one* sat on the throne.
- Re 4:5 And out of the throne proceeded lightnings and thunderings and voices: and *there were* seven lamps of fire burning before the throne, which are the seven Spirits < 4151> of God.
- Re 5:6 And I beheld, and, lo, in the midst of the throne and of the four beasts, and in the midst of the elders, stood a Lamb as it had been slain, having seven horns and seven eyes, which are the seven Spirits <4151> of God sent forth into all the earth.

- Re 11:11 And after three days and an half the Spirit <4151> of life from God entered into them, and they stood upon their feet; and great fear fell upon them which saw them.
- Re 13:15 And he had power to give life <4151> unto the image of the beast, that the image of the beast should both speak, and cause that as many as would not worship the image of the beast should be killed.
- Re 14:13 And I heard a voice from heaven saying unto me, Write, Blessed *are* the dead which die in the Lord from henceforth: Yea, saith the Spirit <4151>, that they may rest from their labours; and their works do follow them.
- Re 16:13 And I saw three unclean spirits <4151> like frogs *come* out of the mouth of the dragon, and out of the mouth of the beast, and out of the mouth of the false prophet.
- Re 16:14 For they are the spirits <4151> of devils, working miracles, which go forth unto the kings of the earth and of the whole world, to gather them to the battle of that great day of God Almighty.
- Re 17:3 So he carried me away in the spirit <4151> into the wilderness: and I saw a woman sit upon a scarlet coloured beast, full of names of blasphemy, having seven heads and ten horns.
- Re 18:2 And he cried mightily with a strong voice, saying, Babylon the great is fallen, is fallen, and is become the habitation of devils, and the hold of every foul spirit <4151, and a cage of every unclean and hateful bird.
- Re 19:10 And I fell at his feet to worship him. And he said unto me, See *thou do it* not: I am thy fellowservant, and of thy brethren that have the testimony of Jesus: worship God: for the testimony of Jesus is the spirit <4151> of prophecy.
- Re 21:10 And he carried me away in the spirit <4151> to a great and high mountain, and shewed me that great city, the holy Jerusalem, descending out of heaven from God.
- Re 22:17 And the Spirit <4151> and the bride say, Come. And let him that heareth say, Come. And let him that is athirst come. And whosoever will, let him take the water of life freely.

3875 παρακλητος parakletos par-ak'-lay-tos

a root word; TDNT-5:800,782; n m

AV-comforter 4, advocate 1; 5

- 1) summoned, called to one's side, esp. called to one's aid
 - 1a) one who pleads another's cause before a judge, a pleader, counsel for defense, legal assistant, an advocate
 - 1b) one who pleads another's cause with one, an intercessor
 - 1b1) of Christ in his exaltation at God's right hand, pleading with God the Father for the pardon of our sins
 - 1c) in the widest sense, a helper, succourer, aider, assistant
 - 1c1) of the Holy Spirit destined to take the place of Christ with the apostles (after his ascension to the Father), to lead them to a deeper knowledge of the gospel truth, and give them divine strength needed to enable them to undergo trials and persecutions on behalf of the divine kingdom

- John 14:16 And I will pray the Father, and he shall give you another Comforter <3875>, that he may abide with you for ever;
- John 14:26 But the Comforter <3875>, which is the Holy Ghost, whom the Father will send in my name, he shall teach you all things, and bring all things to your remembrance, whatsoever I have said unto you.
- John 15:26 But when the Comforter <3875> is come, whom I will send unto you from the Father, even the Spirit of truth, which proceedeth from the Father, he shall testify of me:
- John 16:7 Nevertheless I tell you the truth; It is expedient for you that I go away: for if I go not away, the Comforter <3875> will not come unto you; but if I depart, I will send him unto you.
- 1 John 2:1 My little children, these things write I unto you, that ye sin not. And if any man sin, we have an advocate <3875> with the Father, Jesus Christ the righteous:

4152 πνευματικός pneumatikos (pnyoo-mat-ik-os')

from 4151; TDNT-6:332,876; adj

AV-spiritual 26; 26

- 1) relating to the human spirit, or rational soul, as part of the man which is akin to God and serves as his instrument or organ
 - 1a) that which possesses the nature of the rational soul
- 2) belonging to a spirit, or a being higher than man but inferior to God
- 3) belonging to the Divine Spirit
 - 3a) of God the Holy Spirit
 - 3b) one who is filled with and governed by the Spirit of God
- 4) pertaining to the wind or breath; windy, exposed to the wind, blowing

4153 πνευματικως pneumatikos (pnyoo-mat-ik-oce')

from 4152; ; adv AV-spiritual 2; 2

1) spiritually: i.e. by the aid of the Holy Spirit

- Ro 1:11 For I long to see you, that I may impart unto you some spiritual <4152> gift, to the end ye may be established;
- Ro 7:14 For we know that the law is spiritual <4152>: but I am carnal, sold under sin.
- Ro 15:27 It hath pleased them verily; and their debtors they are. For if the Gentiles have been made partakers of their spiritual things <4152>, their duty is also to minister unto them in carnal things.
- 1Corinthians 2:13 Which things also we speak, not in the words which man's wisdom teacheth, but which the Holy Ghost teacheth; comparing spiritual things <4152> with spiritual <4152>.
- 1 Corinthians 2:14 But the natural man receiveth not the things of the Spirit of God: for they are foolishness unto him: neither can he know *them*, because they are spiritually <4153> discerned.
- 1Corinthians 2:15 But he that is spiritual <4152> judgeth all things, yet he himself is judged of no man.

- 1Corinthians 3:1 And I, brethren, could not speak unto you as unto spiritual <4152>, but as unto carnal, even as unto babes in Christ.
- 1Corinthians 9:11 If we have sown unto you spiritual things <4152>, is it a great thing if we shall reap your carnal things?
- 1Corinthians 10:3 And did all eat the same spiritual <4152> meat;
- 1Corinthians 10:4 And did all drink the same spiritual <4152> drink: for they drank of that spiritual <4152> Rock that followed them: and that Rock was Christ.
- 1Corinthians 12:1 Now concerning spiritual <4152> gifts, brethren, I would not have you ignorant.
- 1Corinthians 14:1 Follow after charity, and desire spiritual <4152> gifts, but rather that ye may prophesy.
- 1Corinthians 14:37 If any man think himself to be a prophet, or spiritual <4152>, let him acknowledge that the things that I write unto you are the commandments of the Lord.
- 1Corinthians 15:44 It is sown a natural body; it is raised a spiritual <4152> body. There is a natural body, and there is a spiritual <4152> body.
- 1Corinthians 15:46 Howbeit that *was* not first which is spiritual <4152>, but that which is natural; and afterward that which is spiritual <4152>.
- Ga 6:1 Brethren, if a man be overtaken in a fault, ye which are spiritual <4152>, restore such an one in the spirit of meekness; considering thyself, lest thou also be tempted.
- Eph 1:3 Blessed *be* the God and Father of our Lord Jesus Christ, who hath blessed us with all spiritual <4152> blessings in heavenly *places* in Christ:
- Eph 5:19 Speaking to yourselves in psalms and hymns and spiritual <4152> songs, singing and making melody in your heart to the Lord;
- Eph 6:12 For we wrestle not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of the darkness of this world, against spiritual <4152> wickedness in high *places*.
- Col 1:9 For this cause we also, since the day we heard *it*, do not cease to pray for you, and to desire that ye might be filled with the knowledge of his will in all wisdom and spiritual <4152> understanding;
- Col 3:16 Let the word of Christ dwell in you richly in all wisdom; teaching and admonishing one another in psalms and hymns and spiritual <4152> songs, singing with grace in your hearts to the Lord.
- 1Pe 2:5 Ye also, as lively stones, are built up a spiritual <a hre
- Revelation 11:8 And their dead bodies *shall lie* in the street of the great city, which spiritually <4153> is called Sodom and Egypt, where also our Lord was crucified.

2473 ισοψυχος isopsuchos (ee-sop'-soo-khos)

from 2470 and 5590; ; adj AV-likeminded 1; 1 1) equal in soul

Php 2:20

For I have no man likeminded <2473>, who will naturally care for your state.

5486 χαρισμα charisma (khar'-is-mah)

from <u>5483</u>; TDNT-9:402,1298; n n

AV-gift 15, free gift 2; 17

- 1) a favour with which one receives without any merit of his own
- 2) the gift of divine grace
- 3) the gift of faith, knowledge, holiness, virtue
- 4) the economy of divine grace, by which the pardon of sin and eternal salvation is appointed to sinners in consideration of the merits of Christ laid hold of by faith
- 5) grace or gifts denoting extraordinary powers, distinguishing certain Christians and enabling them to serve the church of Christ, the reception of which is due to the power of divine grace operating on their souls by the Holy Spirit
- Romans 1:11 For I long to see you, that I may impart unto you some spiritual gift <5486>, to the end ye may be established;
- Romans 5:15 But not as the offence, so also *is* the free gift <5486>. For if through the offence of one many be dead, much more the grace of God, and the gift by grace, *which is* by one man, Jesus Christ, hath abounded unto many.
- Romans 5:16 And not as *it was* by one that sinned, *so is* the gift: for the judgment *was* by one to condemnation, but the free gift <5486> *is* of many offences unto justification.
- Romans 6:23 For the wages of sin *is* death; but the gift <5486> of God *is* eternal life through Jesus Christ our Lord.
- Romans 11:29 For the gifts <5486> and calling of God *are* without repentance.
- Romans 12:6 Having then gifts <5486> differing according to the grace that is given to us, whether prophecy, *let us prophesy* according to the proportion of faith;
- 1 Corinthians 1:7 So that ye come behind in no gift <5486>; waiting for the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ:
- 1 Corinthians 7:7 For I would that all men were even as I myself. But every man hath his proper gift <5486> of God, one after this manner, and another after that.
- 1 Corinthians 12:4 Now there are diversities of gifts <5486>, but the same Spirit.
- 1 Corinthians 12:9 To another faith by the same Spirit; to another the gifts <5486> of healing by the same Spirit;
- 1 Corinthians 12:28 And God hath set some in the church, first apostles, secondarily prophets, thirdly teachers, after that miracles, then gifts <5486> of healings, helps, governments, diversities of tongues.
- 1 Corinthians 12:30 Have all the gifts <5486> of healing? do all speak with tongues? do all interpret?

- 1 Corinthians 12:31 But covet earnestly the best gifts <5486>: and yet shew I unto you a more excellent way.
- 2 Corinthians 1:11 Ye also helping together by prayer for us, that for the gift <5486> bestowed upon us by the means of many persons thanks may be given by many on our behalf.
- 1 Timothy 4:14 Neglect not the gift <5486> that is in thee, which was given thee by prophecy, with the laying on of the hands of the presbytery.
- 2 Timothy 1:6 Wherefore I put thee in remembrance that thou stir up the gift <5486> of God, which is in thee by the putting on of my hands.
- 1 Peter 4:10 As every man hath received the gift <5486>, even so minister the same one to another, as good stewards of the manifold grace of God.

5545 χρισμα chrisma (khris'-mah)

from <u>5548</u>; TDNT-9:493,1322; n n AV-anointing 2, unction 1; 3

- 1) anything smeared on, unguent, ointment, usually prepared by the Hebrews from oil and aromatic herbs. Anointing was the inaugural ceremony for priests
- 1Jo 2:20 But ye have an unction <5545> from the Holy One, and ye know all things.

 1Jo 2:27 But the anointing <5545> which ye have received of him abideth in you, and ye need not that any man teach you: but as the same anointing <5545> teacheth you of all things, and is truth, and is no lie, and even as it hath taught you, ye shall abide in him.

5326 φαντασμα phantasma (fan'-tas-mah)

from <u>5324</u>; TDNT-9:6,1244; n n

AV-spirit 2; 2

- 1) an appearance
- 2) an apparition, spectre
- Mt 14:26 And when the disciples saw him walking on the sea, they were troubled, saying, It is a spirit <5326>; and they cried out for fear.
- Mr 6:49 But when they saw him walking upon the sea, they supposed it had been a spirit <5326>, and cried out:

4396 προφητης prophetes (prof-ay'-tace)

from a compound of <u>4253</u> and <u>5346</u>; TDNT-6:781,952; n m AV-prophet 149; 149

- 1) in Greek writings, an interpreter of oracles or of other hidden things
- 2) one who, moved by the Spirit of God and hence his organ or spokesman, solemnly declares to men what he has received by inspiration, especially concerning future events, and in particular such as relate to the cause and kingdom of God and to human salvation
 - 2a) the OT prophets, having foretold the kingdom, deeds and death, of Jesus the Messiah.
 - 2b) of John the Baptist, the herald of Jesus the Messiah
 - 2c) of the illustrious prophet, the Jews expected before the advent of the Messiah
 - 2d) the Messiah
 - 2e) of men filled with the Spirit of God, who by God's authority and command in words of weight pleads the cause of God and urges salvation of men
 - 2f) of prophets that appeared in the apostolic age among Christians
 - 2f1) they are associated with the apostles
 - 2f2) they discerned and did what is best for the Christian cause, foretelling certain future events. (#Ac 11:27)
 - 2f3) in the religious assemblies of the Christians, they were moved by the Holy Spirit to speak, having power to instruct, comfort, encourage, rebuke, convict, and stimulate, their hearers
- 3) a poet (because poets were believed to sing under divine inspiration) 3a) of Epimenides (#Tit 1:12)
- Matthew 1:22 Now all this was done, that it might be fulfilled which was spoken of the Lord by the prophet <4396>, saying,
- Matthew 2:5 And they said unto him, In Bethlehem of Judaea: for thus it is written by the prophet <4396>,
- Matthew 2:15 And was there until the death of Herod: that it might be fulfilled which was spoken of the Lord by the prophet <4396>, saying, Out of Egypt have I called my son.
- Matthew 2:17 Then was fulfilled that which was spoken by Jeremy the prophet <4396>, saying,
- Matthew 2:23 And he came and dwelt in a city called Nazareth: that it might be fulfilled which was spoken by the prophets <4396>, He shall be called a Nazarene.
- Matthew 3:3 For this is he that was spoken of by the prophet <4396> Esaias, saying, The voice of one crying in the wilderness, Prepare ye the way of the Lord, make his paths straight.
- Matthew 4:14 That it might be fulfilled which was spoken by Esaias the prophet <4396>, saying,
- Matthew 5:12 Rejoice, and be exceeding glad: for great *is* your reward in heaven: for so persecuted they the prophets <4396> which were before you.
- Matthew 5:17 Think not that I am come to destroy the law, or the prophets <4396>: I am not come to destroy, but to fulfil.
- Matthew 7:12 Therefore all things whatsoever ye would that men should do to you, do ye even so to them: for this is the law and the prophets <4396>.

- Matthew 8:17 That it might be fulfilled which was spoken by Esaias the prophet <4396>, saying, Himself took our infirmities, and bare *our* sicknesses.
- Matthew 10:41 He that receiveth a prophet <4396> in the name of a prophet <4396> shall receive a prophet's <4396> reward; and he that receiveth a righteous man in the name of a righteous man shall receive a righteous man's reward.
- Matthew 11:9 But what went ye out for to see? A prophet <4396>? yea, I say unto you, and more than a prophet <4396>.
- Matthew 11:13 For all the prophets <4396> and the law prophesied until John.
- Matthew 12:17 That it might be fulfilled which was spoken by Esaias the prophet <4396, saying,
- Matthew 12:39 But he answered and said unto them, An evil and adulterous generation seeketh after a sign; and there shall no sign be given to it, but the sign of the prophet <4396> Jonas:
- Matthew 13:17 For verily I say unto you, That many prophets <4396> and righteous men have desired to see those things which ye see, and have not seen them; and to hear those things which ye hear, and have not heard them.
- Matthew 13:35 That it might be fulfilled which was spoken by the prophet <4396>, saying, I will open my mouth in parables; I will utter things which have been kept secret from the foundation of the world.
- Matthew 13:57 And they were offended in him. But Jesus said unto them, A prophet <4396 is not without honour, save in his own country, and in his own house.
- Matthew 14:5 And when he would have put him to death, he feared the multitude, because they counted him as a prophet <4396>.
- Matthew 16:4 A wicked and adulterous generation seeketh after a sign; and there shall no sign be given unto it, but the sign of the prophet <4396> Jonas. And he left them, and departed.
- Matthew 16:14 And they said, Some *say that thou art* John the Baptist: some, Elias; and others, Jeremias, or one of the prophets <4396>.
- Matthew 21:4 All this was done, that it might be fulfilled which was spoken by the prophet <4396>, saying,
- Matthew 21:11 And the multitude said, This is Jesus the prophet <4396> of Nazareth of Galilee.
- Matthew 21:26 But if we shall say, Of men; we fear the people; for all hold John as a prophet <4396>.
- Matthew 21:46 But when they sought to lay hands on him, they feared the multitude, because they took him for a prophet <4396>.
- Matthew 22:40 On these two commandments hang all the law and the prophets <4396>.
- Matthew 23:29 Woe unto you, scribes and Pharisees, hypocrites! because ye build the tombs of the prophets <4396>, and garnish the sepulchres of the righteous,
- Matthew 23:30 And say, If we had been in the days of our fathers, we would not have been partakers with them in the blood of the prophets <4396>.
- Matthew 23:31 Wherefore ye be witnesses unto yourselves, that ye are the children of them which killed the prophets <4396>.

- Matthew 23:34 Wherefore, behold, I send unto you prophets <4396>, and wise men, and scribes: and *some* of them ye shall kill and crucify; and *some* of them shall ye scourge in your synagogues, and persecute *them* from city to city:
- Matthew 23:37 O Jerusalem, Jerusalem, thou that killest the prophets <4396>, and stonest them which are sent unto thee, how often would I have gathered thy children together, even as a hen gathereth her chickens under her wings, and ye would not!
- Matthew 24:15 When ye therefore shall see the abomination of desolation, spoken of by Daniel the prophet <4396>, stand in the holy place, (whoso readeth, let him understand:)
- Matthew 26:56 But all this was done, that the scriptures of the prophets <4396> might be fulfilled. Then all the disciples forsook him, and fled.
- Matthew 27:9 Then was fulfilled that which was spoken by Jeremy the prophet <4396>, saying, And they took the thirty pieces of silver, the price of him that was valued, whom they of the children of Israel did value;
- Matthew 27:35 And they crucified him, and parted his garments, casting lots: that it might be fulfilled which was spoken by the prophet <4396>, They parted my garments among them, and upon my vesture did they cast lots.
- Mark 1:2 As it is written in the prophets <4396>, Behold, I send my messenger before thy face, which shall prepare thy way before thee.
- Mark 6:4 But Jesus said unto them, A prophet <4396> is not without honour, but in his own country, and among his own kin, and in his own house.
- Mark 6:15 Others said, That it is Elias. And others said, That it is a prophet <4396>, or as one of the prophets <4396>.
- Mark 8:28 And they answered, John the Baptist: but some *say*, Elias; and others, One of the prophets <4396>.
- Mark 11:32 But if we shall say, Of men; they feared the people: for all *men* counted John, that he was a prophet <4396> indeed.
- Mark 13:14 But when ye shall see the abomination of desolation, spoken of by Daniel the prophet <4396>, standing where it ought not, (let him that readeth understand,) then let them that be in Judaea flee to the mountains:
- Luke 1:70 As he spake by the mouth of his holy prophets <4396>, which have been since the world began:
- Luke 1:76 And thou, child, shalt be called the prophet <4396> of the Highest: for thou shalt go before the face of the Lord to prepare his ways;
- Luke 3:4 As it is written in the book of the words of Esaias the prophet <4396>, saying, The voice of one crying in the wilderness, Prepare ye the way of the Lord, make his paths straight.
- Luke 4:17 And there was delivered unto him the book of the prophet <4396> Esaias. And when he had opened the book, he found the place where it was written,
- Luke 4:24 And he said, Verily I say unto you, No prophet <4396> is accepted in his own country.
- Luke 4:27 And many lepers were in Israel in the time of Eliseus the prophet <4396>; and none of them was cleansed, saving Naaman the Syrian.
- Luke 6:23 Rejoice ye in that day, and leap for joy: for, behold, your reward *is* great in heaven: for in the like manner did their fathers unto the prophets <4396>.

- Luke 7:16 And there came a fear on all: and they glorified God, saying, That a great prophet <4396> is risen up among us; and, That God hath visited his people.
- Luke 7:26 But what went ye out for to see? A prophet <4396>? Yea, I say unto you, and much more than a prophet <4396>.
- Luke 7:28 For I say unto you, Among those that are born of women there is not a greater prophet <4396> than John the Baptist: but he that is least in the kingdom of God is greater than he.
- Luke 7:39 Now when the Pharisee which had bidden him saw *it*, he spake within himself, saying, This man, if he were a prophet <4396>, would have known who and what manner of woman *this is* that toucheth him: for she is a sinner.
- Luke 9:8 And of some, that Elias had appeared; and of others, that one of the old prophets <4396> was risen again.
- Luke 9:19 They answering said, John the Baptist; but some *say*, Elias; and others *say*, that one of the old prophets <4396> is risen again.
- Luke 10:24 For I tell you, that many prophets <4396> and kings have desired to see those things which ye see, and have not seen *them*; and to hear those things which ye hear, and have not heard *them*.
- Luke 11:29 And when the people were gathered thick together, he began to say, This is an evil generation: they seek a sign; and there shall no sign be given it, but the sign of Jonas the prophet <4396>.
- Luke 11:47 Woe unto you! for ye build the sepulchres of the prophets <4396>, and your fathers killed them.
- Luke 11:49 Therefore also said the wisdom of God, I will send them prophets <4396> and apostles, and *some* of them they shall slay and persecute:
- Luke 11:50 That the blood of all the prophets <4396>, which was shed from the foundation of the world, may be required of this generation;
- Luke 13:28 There shall be weeping and gnashing of teeth, when ye shall see Abraham, and Isaac, and Jacob, and all the prophets <4396>, in the kingdom of God, and you *yourselves* thrust out.
- Luke 13:33 Nevertheless I must walk to day, and to morrow, and the *day* following: for it cannot be that a prophet <4396> perish out of Jerusalem.
- Luke 13:34 O Jerusalem, Jerusalem, which killest the prophets <4396>, and stonest them that are sent unto thee; how often would I have gathered thy children together, as a hen *doth gather* her brood under *her* wings, and ye would not!
- Luke 16:16 The law and the prophets <4396> were until John: since that time the kingdom of God is preached, and every man presseth into it.
- Luke 16:29 Abraham saith unto him, They have Moses and the prophets <4396>; let them hear them.
- Luke 16:31 And he said unto him, If they hear not Moses and the prophets <4396>, neither will they be persuaded, though one rose from the dead.
- Luke 18:31 Then he took *unto him* the twelve, and said unto them, Behold, we go up to Jerusalem, and all things that are written by the prophets <4396> concerning the Son of man shall be accomplished.
- Luke 20:6 But and if we say, Of men; all the people will stone us: for they be persuaded that John was a prophet <4396>.

- Luke 24:19 And he said unto them, What things? And they said unto him, Concerning Jesus of Nazareth, which was a prophet <4396> mighty in deed and word before God and all the people:
- Luke 24:25 Then he said unto them, O fools, and slow of heart to believe all that the prophets <4396> have spoken:
- Luke 24:27 And beginning at Moses and all the prophets <4396>, he expounded unto them in all the scriptures the things concerning himself.
- Luke 24:44 And he said unto them, These *are* the words which I spake unto you, while I was yet with you, that all things must be fulfilled, which were written in the law of Moses, and *in* the prophets <4396>, and *in* the psalms, concerning me.
- John 1:21 And they asked him, What then? Art thou Elias? And he saith, I am not. Art thou that prophet <4396>? And he answered, No.
- John 1:23 He said, I *am* the voice of one crying in the wilderness, Make straight the way of the Lord, as said the prophet <4396> Esaias.
- John 1:25 And they asked him, and said unto him, Why baptizest thou then, if thou be not that Christ, nor Elias, neither that prophet <4396?
- John 1:45 Philip findeth Nathanael, and saith unto him, We have found him, of whom Moses in the law, and the prophets <4396, did write, Jesus of Nazareth, the son of Joseph.
- John 4:19 The woman saith unto him, Sir, I perceive that thou art a prophet <4396>.
- John 4:44 For Jesus himself testified, that a prophet <a href="439
- John 6:14 Then those men, when they had seen the miracle that Jesus did, said, This is of a truth that prophet <4396> that should come into the world.
- John 6:45 It is written in the prophets <4396>, And they shall be all taught of God. Every man therefore that hath heard, and hath learned of the Father, cometh unto me.
- John 7:40 Many of the people therefore, when they heard this saying, said, Of a truth this is the Prophet <4396>.
- John 7:52 They answered and said unto him, Art thou also of Galilee? Search, and look: for out of Galilee ariseth no prophet <4396>.
- John 8:52 Then said the Jews unto him, Now we know that thou hast a devil. Abraham is dead, and the prophets <4396>; and thou sayest, If a man keep my saying, he shall never taste of death.
- John 8:53 Art thou greater than our father Abraham, which is dead? and the prophets <4396> are dead: whom makest thou thyself?
- John 9:17 They say unto the blind man again, What sayest thou of him, that he hath opened thine eyes? He said, He is a prophet <4396>.
- John 12:38 That the saying of Esaias the prophet <4396> might be fulfilled, which he spake, Lord, who hath believed our report? and to whom hath the arm of the Lord been revealed?
- Acts 2:16 But this is that which was spoken by the prophet <4396> Joel;
- Acts 2:30 Therefore being a prophet <4396>, and knowing that God had sworn with an oath to him, that of the fruit of his loins, according to the flesh, he would raise up Christ to sit on his throne;

- Acts 3:18 But those things, which God before had shewed by the mouth of all his prophets <4396>, that Christ should suffer, he hath so fulfilled.
- Acts 3:21 Whom the heaven must receive until the times of restitution of all things, which God hath spoken by the mouth of all his holy prophets <4396> since the world began.
- Acts 3:22 For Moses truly said unto the fathers, A prophet <4396> shall the Lord your God raise up unto you of your brethren, like unto me; him shall ye hear in all things whatsoever he shall say unto you.
- Acts 3:23 And it shall come to pass, *that* every soul, which will not hear that prophet <4396>, shall be destroyed from among the people.
- Acts 3:24 Yea, and all the prophets <4396> from Samuel and those that follow after, as many as have spoken, have likewise foretold of these days.
- Acts 3:25 Ye are the children of the prophets <4396>, and of the covenant which God made with our fathers, saying unto Abraham, And in thy seed shall all the kindreds of the earth be blessed.
- Acts 7:37 This is that Moses, which said unto the children of Israel, A prophet <4396> shall the Lord your God raise up unto you of your brethren, like unto me; him shall ye hear.
- Acts 7:42 Then God turned, and gave them up to worship the host of heaven; as it is written in the book of the prophets <4396>, O ye house of Israel, have ye offered to me slain beasts and sacrifices by the space of forty years in the wilderness?
- Acts 7:48 Howbeit the most High dwelleth not in temples made with hands; as saith the prophet <4396>,
- Acts 7:52 Which of the prophets <4396> have not your fathers persecuted? and they have slain them which shewed before of the coming of the Just One; of whom ye have been now the betrayers and murderers:
- Acts 8:28 Was returning, and sitting in his chariot read Esaias the prophet <4396>.
- Acts 8:30 And Philip ran thither to *him*, and heard him read the prophet <4396> Esaias, and said, Understandest thou what thou readest?
- Acts 8:34 And the eunuch answered Philip, and said, I pray thee, of whom speaketh the prophet <4396> this? of himself, or of some other man?
- Acts 10:43 To him give all the prophets <4396> witness, that through his name whosoever believeth in him shall receive remission of sins.
- Acts 11:27 And in these days came prophets <4396> from Jerusalem unto Antioch.
- Acts 13:1 Now there were in the church that was at Antioch certain prophets <4396> and teachers; as Barnabas, and Simeon that was called Niger, and Lucius of Cyrene, and Manaen, which had been brought up with Herod the tetrarch, and Saul.
- Acts 13:15 And after the reading of the law and the prophets <4396> the rulers of the synagogue sent unto them, saying, Ye men and brethren, if ye have any word of exhortation for the people, say on.
- Acts 13:20 And after that he gave *unto them* judges about the space of four hundred and fifty years, until Samuel the prophet <4396>.
- Acts 13:27 For they that dwell at Jerusalem, and their rulers, because they knew him not, nor yet the voices of the prophets <4396> which are read every sabbath day, they have fulfilled *them* in condemning *him*.

- Acts 13:40 Beware therefore, lest that come upon you, which is spoken of in the prophets <4396>;
- Acts 15:15 And to this agree the words of the prophets <4396>; as it is written,
- Acts 15:32 And Judas and Silas, being prophets <a h
- Acts 21:10 And as we tarried *there* many days, there came down from Judaea a certain prophet <4396>, named Agabus.
- Acts 24:14 But this I confess unto thee, that after the way which they call heresy, so worship I the God of my fathers, believing all things which are written in the law and in the prophets <4396:
- Acts 26:22 Having therefore obtained help of God, I continue unto this day, witnessing both to small and great, saying none other things than those which the prophets <4396> and Moses did say should come:
- Acts 26:27 King Agrippa, believest thou the prophets <4396>? I know that thou believest.
- Acts 28:23 And when they had appointed him a day, there came many to him into *his* lodging; to whom he expounded and testified the kingdom of God, persuading them concerning Jesus, both out of the law of Moses, and *out of* the prophets <4396>, from morning till evening.
- Acts 28:25 And when they agreed not among themselves, they departed, after that Paul had spoken one word, Well spake the Holy Ghost by Esaias the prophet <4396 unto our fathers,
- Romans 1:2 (Which he had promised afore by his prophets <4396> in the holy scriptures,)
- Romans 3:21 But now the righteousness of God without the law is manifested, being witnessed by the law and the prophets <4396>;
- Romans 11:3 Lord, they have killed thy prophets <4396>, and digged down thine altars; and I am left alone, and they seek my life.
- 1 Corinthians 12:28 And God hath set some in the church, first apostles, secondarily prophets <4396>, thirdly teachers, after that miracles, then gifts of healings, helps, governments, diversities of tongues.
- 1 Corinthians 12:29 *Are* all apostles? *are* all prophets <4396>? *are* all teachers? *are* all workers of miracles?
- 1 Corinthians 14:29 Let the prophets <4396> speak two or three, and let the other judge.
- 1 Corinthians 14:32 And the spirits of the prophets <4396> are subject to the prophets <4396>.
- 1 Corinthians 14:37 If any man think himself to be a prophet <4396>, or spiritual, let him acknowledge that the things that I write unto you are the commandments of the Lord.
- Ephesians 2:20 And are built upon the foundation of the apostles and prophets <4396, Jesus Christ himself being the chief corner *stone*;
- Ephesians 3:5 Which in other ages was not made known unto the sons of men, as it is now revealed unto his holy apostles and prophets <4396> by the Spirit;
- Ephesians 4:11 And he gave some, apostles; and some, prophets <4396>; and some, evangelists; and some, pastors and teachers;

- 1 Thessalonians 2:15 Who both killed the Lord Jesus, and their own prophets <4396>, and have persecuted us; and they please not God, and are contrary to all men:
- Titus 1:12 One of themselves, *even* a prophet <4396> of their own, said, The Cretians *are* alway liars, evil beasts, slow bellies.
- Hebrews 1:1 God, who at sundry times and in divers manners spake in time past unto the fathers by the prophets <4396>,
- Hebrews 11:32 And what shall I more say? for the time would fail me to tell of Gedeon, and *of* Barak, and *of* Samson, and *of* Jephthae; *of* David also, and Samuel, and *of* the prophets <4396>:
- James 5:10 Take, my brethren, the prophets <4396>, who have spoken in the name of the Lord, for an example of suffering affliction, and of patience.
- 1 Peter 1:10 Of which salvation the prophets <4396> have enquired and searched diligently, who prophesied of the grace *that should come* unto you:
- 2 Peter 2:16 But was rebuked for his iniquity: the dumb ass speaking with man's voice forbad the madness of the prophet <4396>.
- 2 Peter 3:2 That ye may be mindful of the words which were spoken before by the holy prophets <4396>, and of the commandment of us the apostles of the Lord and Saviour:
- Revelation 10:7 But in the days of the voice of the seventh angel, when he shall begin to sound, the mystery of God should be finished, as he hath declared to his servants the prophets 4396.
- Revelation 11:10 And they that dwell upon the earth shall rejoice over them, and make merry, and shall send gifts one to another; because these two prophets <4396 tormented them that dwelt on the earth.
- Revelation 11:18 And the nations were angry, and thy wrath is come, and the time of the dead, that they should be judged, and that thou shouldest give reward unto thy servants the prophets <4396>, and to the saints, and them that fear thy name, small and great; and shouldest destroy them which destroy the earth.
- Revelation 16:6 For they have shed the blood of saints and prophets <4396>, and thou hast given them blood to drink; for they are worthy.
- Revelation 18:20 Rejoice over her, *thou* heaven, and *ye* holy apostles and prophets <4396>; for God hath avenged you on her.
- Revelation 18:24 And in her was found the blood of prophets <4396>, and of saints, and of all that were slain upon the earth.
- Revelation 22:6 And he said unto me, These sayings *are* faithful and true: and the Lord God of the holy prophets <4396> sent his angel to shew unto his servants the things which must shortly be done.
- Revelation 22:9 Then saith he unto me, See *thou do it* not: for I am thy fellowservant, and of thy brethren the prophets <4396>, and of them which keep the sayings of this book: worship God.

5590 ψυχη psuche (psoo-khay')

```
from 5594; TDNT-9:608,1342; n f
AV-soul 58, life 40, mind 3, heart 1, heartily + 1537 1, not tr 2; 105
1) breath
1a) the breath of life
1a1) the vital force which animates the body and shows itself in breathing
1a1a) of animals
1a1b) of men
1b) life
1c) that in which there is life
1c1) a living being, a living soul
2) the soul
```

- 2a) the seat of the feelings, desires, affections, aversions (our heart, soul etc.)
- 2b) the (human) soul in so far as it is constituted that by the right use of the aids offered it by God it can attain its highest end and secure eternal blessedness, the soul regarded as a moral being designed for everlasting life
- 2c) the soul as an essence which differs from the body and is not dissolved by death (distinguished from other parts of the body)
- Mt 2:20 Saying, Arise, and take the young child and his mother, and go into the land of Israel: for they are dead which sought the young child's life <5590>.
- Mt 6:25 Therefore I say unto you, Take no thought for your life <5590>, what ye shall eat, or what ye shall drink; nor yet for your body, what ye shall put on. Is not the life <5590> more than meat, and the body than raiment?
- Mt 10:28 And fear not them which kill the body, but are not able to kill the soul <5590>: but rather fear him which is able to destroy both soul <5590> and body in hell.
- Mt 10:39 He that findeth his life <5590> shall lose it: and he that loseth his life <5590> for my sake shall find it.
- Mt 11:29 Take my yoke upon you, and learn of me; for I am meek and lowly in heart: and ye shall find rest unto your souls <5590>.
- Mt 12:18 Behold my servant, whom I have chosen; my beloved, in whom my soul <5590> is well pleased: I will put my spirit upon him, and he shall shew judgment to the Gentiles.
- Mt 16:25 For whosoever will save his life <5590> shall lose it: and whosoever will lose his life <5590> for my sake shall find it.
- Mt 16:26 For what is a man profited, if he shall gain the whole world, and lose his own soul <5590>? or what shall a man give in exchange for his soul <5590>?
- Mt 20:28 Even as the Son of man came not to be ministered unto, but to minister, and to give his life <5590> a ransom for many.
- Mt 22:37 Jesus said unto him, Thou shalt love the Lord thy God with all thy heart, and with all thy soul <5590>, and with all thy mind.
- Mt 26:38 Then saith he unto them, My soul <5590> is exceeding sorrowful, even unto death: tarry ye here, and watch with me.

- Mr 3:4 And he saith unto them, Is it lawful to do good on the sabbath days, or to do evil? to save life <5590>, or to kill? But they held their peace.
- Mr 8:35 For whosoever will save his life <5590> shall lose it; but whosoever shall lose his life <5590> for my sake and the gospel's, the same shall save it.
- Mr 8:36 For what shall it profit a man, if he shall gain the whole world, and lose his own soul <5590>?
- Mr 8:37 Or what shall a man give in exchange for his soul <5590>?
- Mr 10:45 For even the Son of man came not to be ministered unto, but to minister, and to give his life <5590> a ransom for many.
- Mr 12:30 And thou shalt love the Lord thy God with all thy heart, and with all thy soul <5590>, and with all thy mind, and with all thy strength: this *is* the first commandment.
- Mr 12:33 And to love him with all the heart, and with all the understanding, and with all the soul <5590>, and with all the strength, and to love *his* neighbour as himself, is more than all whole burnt offerings and sacrifices.
- Mr 14:34 And saith unto them, My soul <5590> is exceeding sorrowful unto death: tarry ye here, and watch.
- Lu 1:46 And Mary said, My soul <5590> doth magnify the Lord,
- Lu 2:35 (Yea, a sword shall pierce through thy own soul <5590> also,) that the thoughts of many hearts may be revealed.
- Lu 6:9 Then said Jesus unto them, I will ask you one thing; Is it lawful on the sabbath days to do good, or to do evil? to save life <5590>, or to destroy it?
- Lu 9:24 For whosoever will save his life <5590> shall lose it: but whosoever will lose his life <5590> for my sake, the same shall save it.
- Lu 9:56 For the Son of man is not come to destroy men's lives <5590>, but to save *them*. And they went to another village.
- Lu 10:27 And he answering said, Thou shalt love the Lord thy God with all thy heart, and with all thy soul <5590>, and with all thy strength, and with all thy mind; and thy neighbour as thyself.
- Lu 12:19 And I will say to my soul <5590>, Soul <5590>, thou hast much goods laid up for many years; take thine ease, eat, drink, and be merry.
- Lu 12:20 But God said unto him, *Thou* fool, this night thy soul <5590> shall be required of thee: then whose shall those things be, which thou hast provided?
- Lu 12:22 And he said unto his disciples, Therefore I say unto you, Take no thought for your life <5590>, what ye shall eat; neither for the body, what ye shall put on.
- Lu 12:23 The life <5590> is more than meat, and the body *is more* than raiment.
- Lu 14:26 If any *man* come to me, and hate not his father, and mother, and wife, and children, and brethren, and sisters, yea, and his own life <5590> also, he cannot be my disciple.
- Lu 17:33 Whosoever shall seek to save his life <5590> shall lose it; and whosoever shall lose his life shall preserve it.
- Lu 21:19 In your patience possess ye your souls <5590>.
- Joh 10:11 I am the good shepherd: the good shepherd giveth his life <5590> for the sheep.
- Joh 10:15 As the Father knoweth me, even so know I the Father: and I lay down my life <5590> for the sheep.

- Joh 10:17 Therefore doth my Father love me, because I lay down my life <5590>, that I might take it again.
- Joh 10:24 Then came the Jews round about him, and said unto him, How long dost thou make us to doubt <5590>? If thou be the Christ, tell us plainly.
- Joh 12:25 He that loveth his life <5590> shall lose it; and he that hateth his life <5590> in this world shall keep it unto life eternal.
- Joh 12:27 Now is my soul <5590> troubled; and what shall I say? Father, save me from this hour: but for this cause came I unto this hour.
- Joh 13:37 Peter said unto him, Lord, why cannot I follow thee now? I will lay down my life <5590> for thy sake.
- Joh 13:38 Jesus answered him, Wilt thou lay down thy life <5590> for my sake? Verily, verily, I say unto thee, The cock shall not crow, till thou hast denied me thrice.
- Joh 15:13 Greater love hath no man than this, that a man lay down his life <5590> for his friends.
- Ac 2:27 Because thou wilt not leave my soul <5590> in hell, neither wilt thou suffer thine Holy One to see corruption.
- Ac 2:31 He seeing this before spake of the resurrection of Christ, that his soul <5590> was not left in hell, neither his flesh did see corruption.
- Ac 2:41 Then they that gladly received his word were baptized: and the same day there were added *unto them* about three thousand souls <5590>.
- Ac 2:43 And fear came upon every soul <5590>: and many wonders and signs were done by the apostles.
- Ac 3:23 And it shall come to pass, *that* every soul <5590>, which will not hear that prophet, shall be destroyed from among the people.
- Ac 4:32 And the multitude of them that believed were of one heart and of one soul <5590>: neither said any of them that ought of the things which he possessed was his own; but they had all things common.
- Ac 7:14 Then sent Joseph, and called his father Jacob to *him*, and all his kindred, threescore and fifteen souls <5590>.
- Ac 14:2 But the unbelieving Jews stirred up the Gentiles, and made their minds <5590> evil affected against the brethren.
- Ac 14:22 Confirming the souls <5590> of the disciples, and exhorting them to continue in the faith, and that we must through much tribulation enter into the kingdom of God.
- Ac 15:24 Forasmuch as we have heard, that certain which went out from us have troubled you with words, subverting your souls <5590>, saying, *Ye must* be circumcised, and keep the law: to whom we gave no *such* commandment:
- Ac 15:26 Men that have hazarded their lives <5590> for the name of our Lord Jesus Christ.
- Ac 20:10 And Paul went down, and fell on him, and embracing *him* said, Trouble not yourselves; for his life <5590> is in him.
- Ac 20:24 But none of these things move me, neither count I my life <5590> dear unto myself, so that I might finish my course with joy, and the ministry, which I have received of the Lord Jesus, to testify the gospel of the grace of God.
- Ac 27:10 And said unto them, Sirs, I perceive that this voyage will be with hurt and much damage, not only of the lading and ship, but also of our lives <5590>.

- Ac 27:22 And now I exhort you to be of good cheer: for there shall be no loss of *any man*'s life <5590> among you, but of the ship.
- Ac 27:37 And we were in all in the ship two hundred threescore and sixteen souls <5590>.
- Ro 2:9 Tribulation and anguish, upon every soul <5590> of man that doeth evil, of the Jew first, and also of the Gentile;
- Ro 11:3 Lord, they have killed thy prophets, and digged down thine altars; and I am left alone, and they seek my life <5590>.
- Ro 13:1 Let every soul <5590> be subject unto the higher powers. For there is no power but of God: the powers that be are ordained of God.
- Ro 16:4 Who have for my life <5590> laid down their own necks: unto whom not only I give thanks, but also all the churches of the Gentiles.
- 1Co 15:45 And so it is written, The first man Adam was made a living soul <5590>; the last Adam was made a quickening spirit.
- 2Co 1:23 Moreover I call God for a record upon my soul <5590>, that to spare you I came not as yet unto Corinth.
- 2Co 12:15 And I will very gladly spend and be spent for you <5590>; though the more abundantly I love you, the less I be loved.
- Eph 6:6 Not with eyeservice, as menpleasers; but as the servants of Christ, doing the will of God from the heart <5590>;
- Php 1:27 Only let your conversation be as it becometh the gospel of Christ: that whether I come and see you, or else be absent, I may hear of your affairs, that ye stand fast in one spirit, with one mind <5590> striving together for the faith of the gospel;
- Php 2:30 Because for the work of Christ he was nigh unto death, not regarding his life <5590>, to supply your lack of service toward me.
- Col 3:23 And whatsoever ye do, do *it* heartily <5590>, as to the Lord, and not unto men;
- 1Th 2:8 So being affectionately desirous of you, we were willing to have imparted unto you, not the gospel of God only, but also our own souls <5590>, because ye were dear unto us.
- 1Th 5:23 And the very God of peace sanctify you wholly; and *I pray God* your whole spirit and soul <5590> and body be preserved blameless unto the coming of our Lord Jesus Christ.
- Heb 4:12 For the word of God *is* quick, and powerful, and sharper than any twoedged sword, piercing even to the dividing asunder of soul <5590> and spirit, and of the joints and marrow, and *is* a discerner of the thoughts and intents of the heart.
- Heb 6:19 Which *hope* we have as an anchor of the soul <5590>, both sure and stedfast, and which entereth into that within the veil;
- Heb 10:38 Now the just shall live by faith: but if *any man* draw back, my soul <5590> shall have no pleasure in him.
- Heb 10:39 But we are not of them who draw back unto perdition; but of them that believe to the saving of the soul <5590>.
- Heb 12:3 For consider him that endured such contradiction of sinners against himself, lest ye be wearied and faint in your minds <5590>.

- Heb 13:17 Obey them that have the rule over you, and submit yourselves: for they watch for your souls <5590>, as they that must give account, that they may do it with joy, and not with grief: for that *is* unprofitable for you.
- Jas 1:21 Wherefore lay apart all filthiness and superfluity of naughtiness, and receive with meekness the engrafted word, which is able to save your souls <5590>.
- Jas 5:20 Let him know, that he which converteth the sinner from the error of his way shall save a soul <5590> from death, and shall hide a multitude of sins.
- 1Pe 1:9 Receiving the end of your faith, even the salvation of your souls <5590>.
- 1Pe 1:22 Seeing ye have purified your souls <5590> in obeying the truth through the Spirit unto unfeigned love of the brethren, see that ye love one another with a pure heart fervently:
- 1Pe 2:11 Dearly beloved, I beseech *you* as strangers and pilgrims, abstain from fleshly lusts, which war against the soul <5590>;
- 1Pe 2:25 For ye were as sheep going astray; but are now returned unto the Shepherd and Bishop of your souls <5590>.
- 1Pe 3:20 Which sometime were disobedient, when once the longsuffering of God waited in the days of Noah, while the ark was a preparing, wherein few, that is, eight souls <5590> were saved by water.
- 1Pe 4:19 Wherefore let them that suffer according to the will of God commit the keeping of their souls <5590> to him in well doing, as unto a faithful Creator.
- 2Pe 2:8 (For that righteous man dwelling among them, in seeing and hearing, vexed *his* righteous soul <5590> from day to day with *their* unlawful deeds;)
- 2Pe 2:14 Having eyes full of adultery, and that cannot cease from sin; beguiling unstable souls <5590>: an heart they have exercised with covetous practices; cursed children:
- 1Jo 3:16 Hereby perceive we the love of God, because he laid down his life <5590> for us: and we ought to lay down our lives <5590> for the brethren.
- 3Jo 1:2 Beloved, I wish above all things that thou mayest prosper and be in health, even as thy soul <5590> prospereth.
- Re 6:9 And when he had opened the fifth seal, I saw under the altar the souls <5590> of them that were slain for the word of God, and for the testimony which they held:
- Re 8:9 And the third part of the creatures which were in the sea, and had life <5590>, died; and the third part of the ships were destroyed.
- Re 12:11 And they overcame him by the blood of the Lamb, and by the word of their testimony; and they loved not their lives <5590> unto the death.
- Re 16:3 And the second angel poured out his vial upon the sea; and it became as the blood of a dead *man*: and every living soul <5590> died in the sea.
- Re 18:13 And cinnamon, and odours, and ointments, and frankincense, and wine, and oil, and fine flour, and wheat, and beasts, and sheep, and horses, and chariots, and slaves, and souls <5590> of men.
- Re 18:14 And the fruits that thy soul <5590> lusted after are departed from thee, and all things which were dainty and goodly are departed from thee, and thou shalt find them no more at all.
- Re 20:4 And I saw thrones, and they sat upon them, and judgment was given unto them: and *I saw* the souls <5590> of them that were beheaded for the witness of Jesus, and for the word of God, and which had not worshipped the beast, neither

his image, neither had received *his* mark upon their foreheads, or in their hands; and they lived and reigned with Christ a thousand years.